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Dear Autonomy Investor,

2006 was an extraordinary year for Autonomy in every sense, and it 1s my great pleasure to
present to you our results from another excellent year Dunng 2006 Autonomy firmly
established itself as the market number one, outpacing all others with leading revenue growth,
profits, R&D investment, customers, employees, cash generation and market position

Our growth and expansion has always been driven by the goal of establishing Autonomy as the
key Infrastructure for the automated handling of all forms of unstructured information such as
text, audio and video  Following this unwavering goal we have achieved sales success and
proven our profitable business model, and have created a special software company which 1s
leading the market

In 2006 we produced record results in every area, which 15 enabling us to build on our position I this letter let me recap
for you our successes during 2006, as well as comment on some of the trends we saw In our business during the year

Financial Results In 2006 revenues, operating profits, profit befare tax and EPS ali scared from our previous recerds in 2005, driven by
a combination of strong organic growth and our strategic acquisitions in 2005 Autonomy's growth continues to outperform the sector
despite our ongoing significant investment in research and developaent for the future - 2006 achigvements included

Record revenues, up 161% from 2005, with strong organic growth and full year impact of acquisitions

Profit from operations up 529% from 2005

Net profit up 337% from 2005

R&D ivestment up 136% year-on-year

Cemented Autonomy's position as the industry leader

Strong posiive cash fow throughout 2006, generating $46 9m of cash from operations n 2006 (2005 $17 7m)
Cash balance of $121 1m at year end

Recaived outstanding achievement award from the London Stock Exchange for our acquisibon of Verity

More than 50 OEM deals, ncluding new and extended agreements with HP, IBM, Oracle and EMC

Share price up 31% dunng 2006, outpacing the FTSE100 and FTSE250 and folfiowing a 163% rise in 2005

a & & & & & & 5 &

Accolades Throughout 2006 Autonemy was recognized by industry analysts as the unmalched market leader  Accolades included

«  IDC said "The clear leader n enterpnse search 1s Autonomy " —IBD, June 27, 2006

«  “Autonomy leads In secunty, capabilities breadth, and corporate strategy  [DOL s the most complete, integrated platform * -
Forrester 2006

«  “[Autonomy's] vision and execution status is founded on sound financials, a sirong and growing customer list, and a vigorous
wision for the burgeoning role of infarmation access " - Gartner 2006

+  ‘Aulonomy eclipses s next closest competitor” - Forrester 2006

Cambndge San Francisco Boston  New York  Washirgton DC
Amsterdam Buenos Arres Being  Tokyo  Brussels Frankfurt
Hamburg  London  Madnd  Mdan  Mumch  Osto Pans  Rome
Shanghal Singapare Stackholm Sydney Kuala Lumpur
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Operations We saw growth in every geographical market we're engaged, including for exampte growth of 206% in our German
operations and 311% in China

Our strong R&D investment throughout the downturn, Including an ncrease 1 R&D spend in 2006 of 136% from 2005, 18 seeing clear
relumns 2006 saw significant Autonomy product developments, with the continued development of industry-leading new technologies,
including IDOL 7 0, a major upgrade of our award-winning core preduct, and the launch of new dwisional applications

The resuls of our investment can also be seen n the continued success of our vertical dwisions, incleding Aungate, Autonomy's award-
winning division speciaizing in compliance, litgation and risk technology, etalk, 2 leading provider of next-generation contact center
technology, Virage, a leading provider of secunty and survesllance software and rich media content management software, and Cardif, a
leading provider of business process management software Each of these divisions 1s founded on Autonomy's unique Intelligent Data
Operating Layer, our core infrastructure for autemating the handling of alt forms of unstructured and structured information

The business value of Autonomy's Infrastnucture technology and its demonstrable ROI are ultimately bome out by our average seling
pnce, which rose throughout 2006 to reach $380,000 in the fourth quarter

The net result of all of the actmity in 2008 was clearly refiected in Autanomy's share pice, up 31% during 2006, following Ausonomy's
performance as the best performing stock in the FTSE250 1 2005  Qur two year performance 15 in the graph below
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Acquisitions | am pleased fo repart that our acquisiions dunng 2006 have delivered significant results, following rapid and successful
integrations  The combnation of Autonomy and Verly created the unmaiched leader in the space Autonomy was awarded the
Achievement of the Year Award 2006 at the techMARK Awards for the success of the acquistion The techMARK Awards, organized by
the London Stock Exchange, are designed to reward autstanding achievement in the technology markel The acquisition of etalk
Corporation in 2005 further extended the adoption of Autenomy's IDOL infrastructure nio the contact center market

Trends In 2006 we saw a confinuation of the trend towards corporate standardization Leading orgamzations continue to realize that
their strategy for handling unstructured information 1s as fundamental as their decisions about the database  Just as they may have made
a decision to standardize on Oracle or SAP companies now standardize the handling of unstructured infarmation and are choosing
Autonomy todo it In this regard, | am pleased to note that a series of companies such as GlaxoSmithKline, Bloomberg and Shell have alt
standardized on Autonomy

The last few years have continued to see explosive growth i the use of unstructured information, which includes documents, emails,
telephone conversations and multmedia More than 85% of all information inside an enterpnise 15 now unstructured and this "human-
fnendly’ information has traditonally been difficult for computers to undersiand and use As always, our positon in the market 13
underpinned by our unique valug proposition to pravide the software infrastructure that automates operations on all forms of information
The unique nature of our teghnology delivers the only platform truty built around Meaning Based Compuling, enabling computers to
understand the refatonships that exist between disparate pieces of information and perform sophisticated analysis operations with real
business value, automatically and i reaktime  Through the understanding of information Autonomy empowers organizations to
understand and capitalize on the information that really matters o therr business by enabling computess to process human-friendly
unstructured information, such as text documents, emails, vaice and video, without the need for manual intervention

The net result of a strong 2006 and our continued nvestments in research and development and pecple means we remain well placed
operationally and financially to dnve continued growth agamn in 2007 | take thus opportunity to thank cnce again our cuslomers,
shareholders, employees and partners for their continued support

At

Dr Michael R Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
13 March 2007
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2006

The following financial review includes certan financial information extracted without adjustment from our consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance wih International Financial Reporting Standards  This financial information 15 & summary and you
should read the entire Annual Report carefully

Operating Results

Revenues for 2006 totalled $250 7 million, up 161% from $96 O million in 2005 Sales were positively impacted in 2006 by organic
growth, together with the full year impact of the acquisiions of etalk in June 2005 and Venty, Inc in December 2005 These results reflect
our ongoing strategy focussed on hicensing of our core IDOL software and pre-configured applications

Cost of revenues (excluding amortisation of purchased intangibles) in 2006 totalled $23 6 million, up 300% {rom $5 9 nullion n 2005
The increase from 2005 to 2006 was pnmarily due to increased support staff and increased consulting services, gach of which increased
as a result of increased revenues, together with a small change in mix of revenues following 2005 acquisitions

Amortization of purchased mtangibles anse i connection with acquistions  Amortization of purchased intangibles in 2006 totalled
$8 0 milion, up 400% from $1 6 milion 1n 2005  The increase in amortization of purchased intangibles from 2005 to 2006 reflects the full
year impact in 2006 of the etalk and Venty acquisitions, which were completed in June 2005 and December 2005 respectively

Gross profit in 2006 totalled $219 1 mithion, up 147% from $88 5 million n 2005, commensurate with the increase n revenues but also
affected by the cost trends discussed above Gross margins increased throughout 2006 through the transition of the core etalk and Venly
businesses to higher margin sales

Research and development expenses in 2005 totalled $51 7 million, up 136% from $21 9 million in 2005 The increase in research and
development expenses from 2005 to 2006 was prmarly due to increased headcount and associated expenses, both from increased
investment in the company's core technology together with new investment ansing from the etalk and Venly acquisiions

Sales and marketing expenses totalled $86 4 million i 2006, up 114% from $40 3 milion in 2005 The increase i sales and marketing
expenses from 2005 to 2006 was pnmarly due lo increased advertising, additional headcount and an increase in sales commissions due
to an increase in sales and a change in the geographic and size-of-transaction mix, all of which also increased with the expansion of the
group in 2005

General and admimnistrative expenses totalled $24 7 milion n 2006, up 122% from $11 1 mifion n 2005 The increase 1 general and
administrative expenses from 2005 to 2006 was due to an increase 1n headcount and legal, accounting and tax advice necessitated by the
enlarged group

Post-acquisttion restructuring costs were not incurred n 2008, versus costs of 55 8 milion in 2005 Such costs were non-recumng
costs associated with the acquisitions of etalk and Venty

Loss on foreign exchange totalled $0 4 milion in 2006, compared to a gain of 30 2 mifion in 2005 This 1s a non-monetary translation
of the value of our foreign currencies  Movement 1s affected by the relative value of the U § dollar versus foreign currencies, and the mix
of our foreign currency cash balances

Profit from operations totalled $55 5 million in 2006, up 529% from $8 8 millicn in 2005 The Increase v profit from operations from
2005 to 2006 reflects an increase in revenues from 2005 to 2006 offset by cost increases discussed above 2005 results also include the
one-ime post-acquisition restructuring costs discussed above  The operational geanng of the company 1s such that the increased
revenues of 161% have resulted 1n an increase in profit from operations of 529%

Loss on disposal of mvestments charges tolalled $nil in 2006, compared to $03 milllon n 2005  Faw value adjustment of
nvestments duning 2006 totalled $0 3m, compared to $0 5 mullion in 2005 In both 2006 and 2005 the company partially wiole down one
nvestment

Interest income totalled $3 7 million 1 2006, down 4% from $3 8 melion 1in 2005 Interest income in 2006 was impacled by lower average
cash balances dunng 2006 than 2005 Interest payable totalled $2 6 million in 2006, &l relating to the bank loan drawn down as partial
consideration of the Venly acquisition

Profit before tax totalled 356 3 mullion m 2008, up 346% from $12 6 million in 2005 The increase n profit before tax reflects an increase
n revenues from 2005 to 2006 offset by ncreases In costs discussed above

Income tax charges totalled $17 2 million in 2006, vp 369% from $3 7 million in 2005 Effective Income tax rates increased shghtly from
an effective group 1ax rate of 29 1% i 2005 to an effective rate of 30 6% in 2006 Dunng 2005 the company recognised a deferred tax
asset in relation to previous irading losses which reduced the effective tax rate

Net profit totallad $39 1 million in 2006, up 337% from $9 0 million in 2005

Basic and diluted earnings per share was at a record level of $0 21 per share in 2006, an increase of 200% from $0 07 1n 2005
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2006

Lequidity and Capital Resources
Cash and cash equivalents totalled $121 1 million at 31 December 2006, versus $68 6 million at 31 December 2005 Dunng 2006 cash
was primarily utihzed to repay the company’s bank loan and for capital investments, with no matenal acquisiions durning the year

Net cash generated by operations totalled $46 9 million in 2008, an increase of 165% from $17 7 millen 1n 2005 The increase in cash
generation from 2005 to 2006 was prmanly related to increased revenues, increased operating margins and strong cash collection dunng
2008

Net cash used in investing actvities totalled $26 4 million in 2006, down from $352 6 milion tn 2005 The maonty of the expenditure n
2006 relates to provisions ansing in connection with the Venty acquisition in 2005, such as adwsors’ fees and onerous lease provisions
In addition, cash was used to acquire office equipment, nternally generated intangible assets and further overseas nvestment  In 2005,
net cash of $28 1 millon was used for the acquistion of etalk, and net cash of $320 5 milton was used for the acquisition of Venty, with
the balance used to acquire office equipment and software licenses, and to nvest in the company's Chinese associate

Net cash provided by financing activities totalled $31 3 million in 2006, down from $307 5 mullion 1n 2005 Net cash prowided by financing
activities 1In 2006 was primanly from the proceeds of employee share option exercises, offset by repayment of the company’s bank loan
Net cash pravided by financing activitres in 2005 was primanly from the proceeds of the company's nghts issue in November 2005 and the
drawdown of the company’s bank loan 1 December 2005, offset by cash used for the company's share repurchase program, which
commenced during 2002 and continued nto 2005  Duning 2006, the company did not purchase for cancellation any shares, versus the
purchase for cancellation i 2005 of 593,942 shares at an average price of appreximately £1 97 per share In total the company has
purchased for cancellation an aggregate of 20,997,824 shares at an average price of approximately £1 65 per share

At 31 December 2006 the company had remaining bank debt of $32 6 million, having repaid $16 3 million dunng 2006 versus the onginal
debt of $48 9 million drawn in 2005 as partial consicerabion for the purchase of Venly, Inc  The company's commitment for 2007 under
operating leases 15 $7 9 million, as discussed in nole 23 The company does not have any malerial financial guarantees or related
covenants Substantially all of the company’s cash balances are held in shori-term deposits paying market interest rates  The company
holds matenal cash balances in pounds sterling, U S dollars and Euros  The company does not currently undertake currency hedging
fransactions 1o cover the company's fransaction or tfransfation exposures, but the company may choose fo hedge a partion of these
exposures In the future

The directors believe that the company's current cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet
the company’s anticipated cash requirements for working capital and capital expendiiures for at least the next 12 months

Other Balance Sheet ltems
Goodwilf has ncreased from $398 8 million at 31 December 2005 to $415 8 million at 31 December 2006  The increase relates primanly
to reclassifications from purchased ntangibles following completion of the purchase accounting in relation to 2005 acquisitions

Other intangible assets fell to $44 8 million at 31 December 2005 from $64 4 at the end of 2005, as a result of adjustments of $136
million relating 1o 2005 acquisitions discussed above, and amortisation of $8 & millien also relating to those acquisitions

Property, plant and equipmant 1s at $6 2 millon at 31 December 2006 compared to $8 & mallion at the end of 2005 Addtions of
$1 5 mullion were offset by depreciation charges of $4 2 mifion

Equity and other investments increased by $2 1 mullion due to increased overseas investment
Deferred tax assels increased shghtly at 31 December 2006 to $7 2 million from $6 7 milion at the end of 2005

Trade and other receivables increased to $85 7 mill:on at 31 December 2008, up from $64 7 million at the end of 2005 The increase I1s
commensurate with the increased revenues of the group

Trade and other payables fell to $216 millon & 31 December 2006 from $33 3 millon at the end of 2005 The 2005 balance was
unusually high due to acquisiiion-related items included n trade creditors or accruals  These items were settled dunng 2006 and the
balance has returned to normal levels

Tax habslities at $2 4 million at 31 December 2006 are down $0 9 million from the end of 2005 The group made a number of payments
on account during the year which have reduced the outstanding liability at the year-end

Deferred revenue increased to $52 5 million at 31 December 2006 from $51 9 mullion at the end of 2005 The increase 15 a combination
of a significant increase 1n icense business, offset by a reduction in services business which traditionally has greater deferred revenue

Provisions decreased by $12 3 milhon dunng 2006 as provisions established for 2005 acquisitions were utilized

Key Events

During 2006 the company continued to establish s care technology as the standard for automating the handling of all forms of
unstruciured nformation  Towards this end the company's investment in research and development continued to deliver retums with
stiong organic growth across the company together with strong growih dniven by recent acquisitions, including the acquisitions of etalk
Corporation in June 2005 and Venty, Inc in December 2005
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2006

Key Risks
The key nsks 1o which the business 15 exposed are summanzed as follows

=  Our business depends on our core technology, currently marketed under the brand IDOL Server, and our strategy has been,
and for the foreseeable future will continue to be, to concentrate our efforts on developing and marketing software based on
our proprietary technology Technology which significantly competes with the company's technology, or matenal legal claims
against our technology, would present a matenal nsk to the company

s  Expenditures increasing without a commensurate increase In revenues, and rapid changes in market conditions, could result in

poor operating results

The average selling pnces of our products could decrease rapidly, which may negatively impact revenues and gross margins

The refurn of unfavorable econcmic and market conditions

Our reliance on sales of our products by third parties such as value added resellers makes it difficult to predict our revenues,

cash flow and operating results

Cur ability to expand sales through indirect sellers

The continued service of our executive directors

The hinng and retenticn of qualified personnel

Errors or defects n our products, which could negatively affect our revenues and the market acceptance of our products and

INCrease our costs

Problems encountered in connection with potential acquisitions

Claims by others that we infringe on their intellectual property nghts

The company's palicies applicable to employees addressing key business risks, including financial, communications, whistle blowing and
health and safety, are made avalable through policy manuals and the company's infranet site

The processes to identify and manage the key risks to the success of the company are an integral part of the internal control environment
Such processes, in addition to those discussed above, include strategic planning, appointing highly skilled managers with accountabulity,
regular meonitoring of performance and setiing and communicating high standards and targets for ethics, safety and health

Key Performance Indicators
The company has several key performance measures used ntemally to menitor and challenge performance and to assist nvesiment
decisions The most important indicators are

s  Revenue e  (Cash balances
+  Research and development expenditure e  Headcount
¢ Gross marging, opesating margins and EPS

Performance in the cuerent and prior years 1s summanzed as follows

2006 2005 % Change

Revenue $250 Tm $96 Om 161%
Gross margins (adjusied)” 91% 94%

Operating margins {adjusted)” 27% 19% 44%
EPS {adjusted)* {see note 10) 3026 $012 116%
Cash balances $1211m $68 6m 77%
Research and development expenditure 351 7m $219m

Average Headcount 903 318 184%

" Adjusted results exclude post-acquisibien restructunng costs, farr value adjustment on invesiments, loss on disposal of investments, share of loss of
associates and non-cash charges, namely the amortization of purghased itangtbles, share based compensation and non-cash translat:onal foregn
exchange gains and losses and associated tax effects See reconciliations on page 22

The shight overall decrease In gross marging duning 2006 reflects the impact of lower-margin services business acquired as part of 2005
acquisitions  Throughout 2006 gross margins continued to nse, reflecting increased license revenues versus other revenues

The increase In operating margins is a reflection of significantly increased revenue, due to a combination of strong organic growth and the
full year impact of acquisitions, versus the company's relatively fixed cost-base
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Board of Directors

Autonomy 15 led by a close-knit and highly experienced management team  Thay brng together extensive expertise covenng every facet
of information technology and its consiituent sectors and markets

Dr Michael Lynch OBE, Managing fhrector and Chief Executive Officer, 41, co-founded Autonomy and has served as Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer since our inception in March 1996 Dr Lynch is also a non-executive director of the BBC and Isabel
Healthcare Limited  Dr Lynch holds an M A n electnical and information sciences, a Ph D in adaptive techniques in signal processing
and connectionist models and held a research fellowship in adaptive pattern recognition at Cambnidge University - Dr Lynch was named
the Confederation of Bntish Indusiry’s Entrepreneur of the Year, won an 1EE Award for Qutstanding Achievement and was awarded an
OBE for Services to Enterpnse  Dr Lynch 15 also a Lady Margaret Beaufort Fellow of Chnst's College, Cambndge, and the author of a
number of academic papers on the subject of Pattem Recognition and Signal Processing  Dr Lynch was appoinied to the Board when
Autonomy was founded in 1996

Sushovan Hussam, Board Director and Chief Financial Officer, 42, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since June 2001 and
was appointed a Director in June 2003  Prior to joning Autonomy, Mr Hussain werked for LASMO ple, one of the world's largest
independent all and gas exploration companies, where he held a number of senior internationa financial positions, including three years in
the Corporate Development department, charged with acquisitions and divestments Mr Hussan receved his BA i Economics from
Cambndge University, England, and became a qualified Chartered Accountant while employed at Ernst & Young in London  Mr Hussain
was appointed fo the Board n June 2003

Richard Gaunt, Non-Executive Director, 39, co-founded Autonomy and has served as an executive and non-executive Director at times
since our inceplion n March 1996 Mr Gaunt holds a BSc in electronic engineering and an MSe from the University of Natal in Durban
Mr Gaunt was appointed to the Board when Autonomy was founded in 1998

Barry Anko, Board Director, 61, has served as a non-executive director of Autonomy since January 2000 From November 2003, Mr
Anko has served as CEQ and President of Mirapoint, Inc, & leader in messaging networks  From January 2000, unti it was acquired by
Peregrne Systems in May 2001, he was Charman, CEO and President of Extnicily, Inc, a provider of software for the management of
Inter-company transactions and workflow  Prior to Exincity, he was Senuor Vice President of ACL, which had acquired Netscape
Communications Corp , where he was Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer with pnmary responsibiliy for the enterpnse
software business since August 1998 From April 1994 to August 1938, Mr Ariko was Executive Vice President in charge of the Amencas
operations for Oracle Corp  Mr Anko also serves as a direclor of Incyte  Mr Anko holds a BS  in Management from Golden Gate
University 1n San Francisco and in 1992 completed the Advanced Execttive Program at Northwestern University's J L Kellogg Graduate
School of Management

John McMomigall, Board Director, 63, has served as a non-executive director of Autanomy since July 1998  Since Apnl 1990, Mr
McMonigall has been a pariner with Apax Partners Worldwide LLP, the private equity firm, where he specilaizes in telecommunications,
software and related fields From 1986 to 1990, Mr McMonigall held a vanety of positions at British Telecom where he served as a
member of the Management Board He currently serves on the board of Diglog Semiconductor Pic Mr McMonigall also serves on the
boards of several pnvately owned companies as a non-executive director

Richard N Perle, Board Diractor, 53, has served as a non-executive director of Autonomy since February 2000 Mr Perle has served
as Resident Fellow of the Amencan Enterpnse Institute for Public Policy Research since 1887  From 1981 to 1987 he was the Uniled
States Assistant Secretary of Defense for International Security Policy, and from 2001 through 2003 served as Chairman of the U S
Defense Policy Board Mr Perle 15 a director of Tapestry Pharmaceuticals, Inc , a pharmaceutical company focused on the development
of proprietary therapies for the treatment of cancer He serves as a member of Terra Incognita, a group advising Terra Firma, a U K-
based private equity fund Mr Perle attended the London School of Economics with Honors Examinations, receved an MA in palitcs
from Princeton University and @ BA from the University of Southern California i international refations, and completed vanous
fellowships at Princeton Uriversity, the Ford Foundation and the Amencan Council of Learned Socigties
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Directors’ Repor for the year ended 31 December 2006

The directors present their report and group audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the group dunng 2006 continued to be software development and distnbulion and related support, maintenance
and consulting services The group has activities throughout Europe, North America, Asia and Australia, with smaller operations in Brazil
and Argentina

Review of Developments and 2006 Results

Resulis of the company are set out beginming on page 20 Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2006 was $2507 million, an
increase of 161% from $96 0 mullion in 2005 Net profit was $38 1 milion for 2006 compared with net profit of $9 0 milkon in 2005 The
company sohdfied its ndustrydeading postion dunng 2006, followng two significan! acquisibons in 2005  The Financial Review
beginning on page 4 prowdes further comment on the developments and the results for the year, as well as nisks and uncertainties

Enhanced Business Review

The directors are required to provide an enhanced business review  The information the review 15 required to contan 1s set out In this
report and 1n the financial results section of the letter from the CEQ and the Financial Review, which also report on the business and
principal Issues of the past year and fulure prospects

Research and Development

The company remans firmly committed to research and development (o maintain its position as a market leader Duning ihe year the
company spent $54 9 millign (2005 $21 9 million}, including $3 2 million of capitalized costs, on research and development, an Increase
of 150% from 2005

Dividends

The Board reviews uses of cash resources an an ongoing basis  In hght of the company's continued need for cash for potental trade
investments and expected significan: iInvestment n further research and development, the company to date has not paid or declared
dividends on s shares, n common with most of its peer companies in the high technology sector  The policy will be kept under continual
review Accordingly the direclors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2005 - ENIl)

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

Al the last Annual General Meeting, the sharehalders authonzed the company to make markel purchases of up to 27,407,950 ordinary
shares representing approximately 14 9% of its 15sued share capal at that tme  The authonty will expire at the end of the next Annual
General Meeting of the company unless renewed at that meeting  During 2006 the company did not conduct any share repurchases I
total, the company has purchased for cancellation 20,997,824 shares, representing approximately 11 2% of the company's total ssued
share capilal at 31 December 2006, at an average price of £165 per share, for aggregate consideration of £344 million  As of 31
December 2006, the company had remaining authonzation to repurchase 27,407,950 of the company's ordinary shares  The company’s
continuation of its repurchase program during 2007 will depend on market conditions

Financial Instruments

in retation to the use of financal nstruments, the directors' objectives are to minimize nsk whlst achigving maximum retum on liquid
assets The directors are averse o pancipal loss and manage the safety and preservation of the company's invested funds by limiing
default and market nsks by mvesting with high rated financial mstitutions  The company's investment portiolic 1s comprised enlively of
cash and cash equvalents Al short-term investments have a fixed interest rate  The company does not use denvative financial
Instruments

The group histonically has not faced matenal exposure to price nsk, credit nsk, iquidity sk or cash flow nsk, outside of the ordnary course
of business  As the company has a bank loan, ansing 1n connection with the Venty acquisition, the company i1s marginally exposed 1o
interest rate nsk

Further nformation about the company's financial assets and habilites 1s provided in the notes to the financial statements

Future Developments

The company's stated objective 1s to establish iis technology as the infrastructure standard for automating operations on all forms of
unstructured information  The directors continue to believe that to actieve this goal it 1s important to expand the number and range of
patential customers for its technology  To this end, the company intends 1o sign further licence agreements with new ¢ustomers and to
establish relationships with third-party value added resellers, services providers and CEMs 1o ensure that the company's products are
distnbuted as widely as practicable  The company also plans to develop new technology to license to new and existing cuslomers As a
result of its posikion as an emerging standard n its Industry, the company ts presented with opportunities from time to time to acquire
complementary technology or resources
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Directars' Repart for the year ended 31 December 2006

Directors and Therr Interests

A list of the directors who served duning the year, their interests in the ordinary share capital of the company and details of any share
options over the ordinary share capital of the company, as well as detals of service contracts, are set forth in the Remuneration
Commutiee repont beginning on page 14 Biographies are on page 7 No director had a matenal interest in any significant contract, other
than a service contract or contract for services, with the company or any of (ts subsidianes at any time dunng the year

Re-election of Directors

The company's Arlicles of Association require at least one third of the directors to be subject to re-election at each Annual General
Meeting Dr Lynch and Mr Hussain were re-lected as directors at the company's Annuat General Meeting in 2004 and are standing for
re-election at the next Annual General Meeting  (n addition Mr McMonigall s standing for re-election in accordance with Combined Code
Section A 7 2 Each indvidual’s performance continues to be exemplary and they demonstrate commitment to their roles  Biographies for
all directors, including those standing for re-election, appear on page 7

Substantial Shareholdings
As at 28 February 2007, the company had been notified, in accordance with Sections 158 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985, of the
following interests in the ordinary share capital of the company by persons other than the directors of the company

Ordinary shares of 113p each (1}

Number %
The Capital Group Comparies, Inc 15,054,205 79
FMR Corp (2} 14,089,770 744
Fidelty International Limited (2) 10,957,057 579
Schroders plc 9,912,060 524
Bailie Gifford & Co 9,360,657 494
Legal & General Group Plc 6,220,153 329

(1) Based on 189,312,825 ordinary shares outstanding as of 28 February 2007
(2) Interests of FMR Corp and Fidelity Intemational Limited were: previously aggregated under “Fidely International Limited” prior to impfementation of
the EU Transparency Directive, but are now reported separately

Supplier Payment Policy

The company’s policy 15 1o seftle payment terms with all suppliers when agreeing a fransaction, to ensure that suppliers are aware of the
terms and io abide by such terms  Generally the company pays suppliers at the end of the month following that n which the supplier's
invoice 1s recewved  Creditor days outstanding as at 31 December 2006 calculated in accordance with Schedule 7 Companies Act 1985
for the company was 25 days (2005 - 22 days) and for the principal U K subsidiary was 52 days (2005 - 50 days)

Employees
Matters relating to the company's employees are discussed on page 18

Chantable and Political Contributions

The company’s chantable policies are discussed on page 19 The group made $164,420 in chantable donations during 2006 to a vanety
of chanties ncluding The Prince’s Trust, Comic Rehef and Alderburgh Music (2005 - $45,634) The group did not make any political
contrbutions during 2006 (2005 - $Nu)

Going Concern
After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue Iis operational
existence for the foreseeable future  For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepaning the financial statements

indemnity Provisions

Al the company’s Annual General Meeting In May 2006 shareholders approved an amendment to the company's Articles of Association
providing for indemndication of directors, which remain in force A copy of the company’s Memorandum and Aricles of Association are
avallable for inspection at the company's office and from Companies House

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the company's offices in Cambndge, UK, on 18 Apnl 2007, at 100 pm The company wil
convey the results of proxy votes cast at the Annual General Meeting, and the resulls of the meeting will be announced through the
requlatory news services  Nolice of the Annual General Meeting 15 set out in the circular to shareholders accompanying this annual
report  The company 1s committed to the policy of one share one vote Delotte & Touche LLP, the company's independent auditors, have
expressed ther wilingness ta continue n office as auditors A resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting
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Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2006

Statement of directors’ responsibiiities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are respensible for prepanng the Annual Repor, the Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations  The directors are required 1o prepare financial statements for the group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Unton and have also elected to prepare financial statements for the
company n accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union  Company law requices the directors to prepare such financial
statements in accordance with the Compames Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Infernational Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present faidy for each financial year the company's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows  This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and
conditions & accordance with the definitions and recognitton cntena for assets, labiities, income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements” 1n virtually all circumstances, a
far presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable Intemational Financial Reperting Standards  Directors are also
required {o

«  properly select and apply accounting policies,

»  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information, and

« provide additonal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS 1s msufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entty's financial position and financial
performance

The drectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial
position of the company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregulanties and for the preparation of a directors’ report and drectors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and nfegrity of the company website  Legislation 1 the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financiat statements may differ from legislation i other junsdictions

Audit
Each of the persons who were a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that

+ sofaras he s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

* he has taken all the steps thal he oughl to have taken as a director in order fo make himself aware of any relevant audt
information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreled in accordance with the provisions of Secton 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

On behalf of the Board,

Dr Michael R Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder

13 March 2007

Registered Office Cambridge Business Park, Cowley Road, Cambndge CB4 0WZ
Registered Number 3175909
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Corporate Governance Statement

The company 15 committed to high standards of corporate governance  The Board 15 accountable to the company's shareholders for good
corporale govemance This statement descibes how the principles of corporate governance are applied to the company and (he
company's comphiance with the Combined Code for Corporate Govemnance appended to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty

Comphance with the Combined Code

Throughoui the year ended 31 December 2006, and through 1o the date of approval of the financial statements, the Board considers that
the company has comphed with Section 1 of the 2003 Combined Code with the sole compliance exception (B 2 1) relating to the
composition of the Remuneration Comnuttee of the Board, which i 2007 I1s composed of three independent non-executives bui duang
2006 was composed of two which the Board considered appropnate at the tme  The company has applied the Principles of Good
Govemance set out In Seclion 1 of the Combined Code by complying with the Code of Best Practice as set forth below and in the
Remuneration Repart below  Furiher explanation of how the pnaciples and supporting principles have been applied 15 set out below and
In the directors’ remuneration report

Composition and Operation of the Board

The Board compnses four non-executive directors, three of whom are independent, and two executive directors  The Board has been
established n order to give a balance of knowledge, experience and objeclive overview  The executive directors provide the necessary
skills In commercral, operational and financial management  The executive directors on the Board are the Chief Executive Officer and the
Cheef Finanaial Officer

The four non-executive directors provide 2 blend of expenence to enable them to bring strong independent Judgement and congiderable
knowledge and expenence to the Board's deliberations Mr McMonigall 1s the senior independent non-executive director  The Board has
considered the independence of the non-execulive directors and believes that all of the non-executive diectors are currently independent
of management and fres from any matenal business or other relationships that could matenally interfere with the exercise of therr
independent judgement, with the exception of Mr Gaunt who previously served as an exacutive director  Mr McMonigall's service to the
Board has been extraordinary since the company's founding and his continued service 1s of high benefit not withsianding his tenure of ten
years

The directors’ biographies appear on page 7 These demonstrate that the directors have a range of expenence and are of sufficient
calibre to bring independent judgement on 1ssues of strategy, performance, resources, finance, centrols and standards of conduct  The
Board does not sit with a permanent chairman, but rather the chaw rotates amongst the senior non-executive members present at the
meeting excluding the CEQ, with the meeting's charr sitting until the next meeting  This arrangement has been in place whilst the Board
continues to search for an appropriate charman  The Board is structured to ensure that there 15 no undue dominance by the executive
directors, with controls over compensation and all other matenal matters reserved for the Board rather than individual executives, as
discussed below The Board is satisfied that the appropnate balance has been consislenlly achieved The terms and conditions of
employment of the non-executives are avalable for nspecton at any time at the registered office

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the proper management of the company A statement of the directors’ responsibiities in
respect of the financial statements 1s set oul on pages 9 and 10

Training 1s made avalable to the directors where it 1s considered appropnate  New members of the Board are expected to recewve
induction training n accordance with the recommendations of the Combined Code

Schedule of Matters

The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to +t for decision, which includes approval of financial statements, dividends,
Board appointments and remavals, long term objectives and commercial strategy, changes in capital structure, appointment, removal and
compensation of senior management, major nvestments ncluding mergers and acquisitions, nsk management, corporate governance,
engagement of professional adwisors, political donations and interal control awangements  The ulsmate responsibiity for reviewing and
approving the annual report and financial statements, and for ensunng that they present a balanced assessment of the company's
position, hes with the Board

Board Meetings

The Board meets at Jeast once a quarter, meeting four times dunng 2006 and acting by unanimous wntien consent three tmes Al
directors atiended all mestings, except for Mr McMonigall who attended 75% of the meetings missing one for personal reasons  Prior to
each meeting, the Board s furmished with information in a form and quality appropnate for it to discharge ds duties concerning the state of
the business and performance

Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who 15 responsible to the Board for ensunng that the
Board procedures are followed and that apphcable rules and regulations are complied with The Company Secretary ensures that the
directors take independent professional advice as required  Commuttees are provided with sufficient financial and mformational resources
to undertake their duties

Re-Election
All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders every three years, and at each annual general meeting one third must retire by
rotation Diwectors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next annual general meeting so that they may be re-elected by the
shareholders
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Carporate Governance Statement

Commuttees
The Board has established an Audit Commuttee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomunations Commuitee to deal with specific aspects
of the company's affatrs

e Audit Commitee The members of the audit committee are John McMonigall, Barry Anko and Richard Perle  Each of Messrs
McMonigall and Anko have significant matenal financial experiise, and each have served as the char at tmes dunng 2006
The commitles’s terms of reference inciude, among other things, monitonng the scope and results of the external audi, the
review of ntenm and annual results, the involvement of the extemal auditors in those processes, review of whisile blowing
procedures, considerng compliance with legal requirements, accouniing standards and the Lising Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty, and for advising the Board on the requirement to maintain an effective system of intemaf conirols  The
committee also keeps under review the mdependence and objectiity of the group's external auditors, value for money of the
audil and the nature, extent and cost-effectiveness of the non-audit services provided by the auditors  The commitiee has
authonty over the appomtment, remuneration and resignation or dismussal of the company's auditors

The committee has discussed with the exiernal auditors therw independence, and has receved and reviewed wrilien
disclosures from the external audilors regarding independence  Non-audit work 1s generally put out to tender  In most cases,
the company engages another independent firm of accountants to perform tax consulting work to avaid the possibility that the
auditors' objectivity and independence could be compromised, work ts only carned out by the auditors In cases where they are
best sued to perform the work, for example, lax compliance The company does not award general consulting work to the
auditors However, from time 1o ime, the company will engage the auditors on matiers relaling to acquisition acoounting and
due dihgence In these circumstances, the Chief Financial Officer seeks approval from the commitice

The committee meets at least four times a year, and always prior to the announcement of intenm or annual results  The
external auditors and Chief Financial Officer attend all meetings in order (o ensure that all the information required by the
commutiee 1s available for It to operate effectively The entire committee also meets at least once a year with the external
auditors without any executive directors present  The committee met four times during 2006 Mr Anko attended 100% of the
meetings, Mr McMonigall attended 75%, and Mr Perle attended 50%, each missing meetings only for extraordinary personal
reasons

e  Remuneration Committee A descriptron of the composttion, respensibility and eperation of the remuneration commitiee s set
out in the remuneraton report begirning on page 14

« Nominations Committee The Nominations Commitiee has responsibility for proposing to the Board new appeintments of
executive and non-execulive direciors and makes recommendations to the Board on board composition and balance The
commitiee Wdenlifies and nominates for approval candidates for new Board posttions and to filt Board vacancies as and when
they anse Nominations are based on the batance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board The committee also
reviews the time required from a non-executive director  The commitlee strives to consider candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, also taking into account what skils and expertise are needed on the Board in the future  In conducting its duties
the commiitee may seek extemal advice Whilst a broad range of candidates was considered dunng 2006, no formal
nominations were appropnate  Thus whilst the commites discussed matters in 2006 1t did not convene formally  The
commuttee currently consists of Messrs Anko and Perle, with Mr Perle 1n the charr

The Company Secrelary 15 secretary to all committees Terms of references of the commuttees of the Board are available from the
company secretary upon request

Performance Evaluations

The members of the Board evaluate the performance of the Board, ds committees and ndividual members at meetings, at the first
meeking following the end of the year The non-executive directors, led by the senior Independent director, are responsible for the scope
of the evaluation, taking intoc account the views of execulive directors

Relations with Shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given high prionty  The quarterly and annual results are intended to give a detalled review of the
business and developments A full Annual Report 1s sent to all shareholders The company's website (www autonomy com) contains up
to date iformation on the company's actvities and published financial results  The company holds regular investor conference calls and
webcasts (archived on the website), and solicits regular dialogue with nstitutional shareholders {other than duning closed periods) The
Board also uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate with all shareholders and welcomes their parlicipation

Significant Risks

The company has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nisks faced by the company that has been in
place for 2006 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statemenis  Pnncipal controls are managed by the
execubive directors and key employees, mcluding regular review by management and the Board of the operations and Lhe financial
statements of the company
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Corporate Governance Statement

Internal Control

The Board 1§ responstble for the company's system of internal control and for reviewing s effectiveness with regard to achieving the
company's business objectives and enhancing shareholder value Such a system is designed to manage the nsk of falure, and by is
nature can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss  The system has been wn place
throughout the year and up 1o the date of these financial statements The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the company's
intemal control systems, ncluding financial, operational and comphance controls and nsk management, and believes the system 15 in
accordance with the Tumbull guidance  These reviews are principally based on reports from management to consider whether significant
nsks are identified, evaluated, managed and controlled and whether any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied or indicate a need
for more extensive monttorng  The Board has also performed a specific assessment for purposes of ihis Annual Repor using the
standard of care applicable to directors In the exercise of their duties  The directors consuder that its internal contrals, particularly given
the company's size and the nature of the company's business operations, provide reasonable but not absctute assurance aganst materat
misstatement or loss

The main elements of internal control currently include

«  Operating Controls  The identificaion and mibgaton of major business risks on a daily basis 15 the responsibility of the
executive directors and sentor management  Each business function within the company mantains controls and procedures,
as directed by senior management, apprepriate to its own business environment while conforming to the company's standards
and guidelines These include procedures and guidelines to identfy, evaluate the hkelihood and mitigate all types of nsks on
an ongoing basis

«  Information and Communication The comsany's operating procedures include a comprehensive system for reporting financial
and nen-financial Information to the directors  Financial projections, including revenue and profit forecasts, are reported on @
regular basis to sentor management against corresponding figures for previous periods  The central process for evaluating and
managing non-financial nsks 15 weekly meetings of business funchons, each involving at least one director, together with
penodic meetings of executive directors and semor management

s  Fmance Management The finance department operates within policies approved by the directors and the Chief Financial
Officer Expenditures are tightly controlled with strngent approvals required based on amount  Duties such as legal, finance,
sales and operations are also strictly segregated to minimize nisk

» Insurange Insurance cover s provided externally and depends on the scale of the risk in question and the: availability of cover
In the external market

Internal Audit

As the company has grown during 2006 the Board has discussed matters relating to nternal control and the: present need to establish an
internal audit function Given the company's extensive iternal reporting functions, extensive internal controls and significant executive
director involvemant n all aspects of the company's business affairs, dunng 2006 the Board did not cansider it necessary for the company
to have its own internal audit function No material breaches of internal controls were identified dunng 2006 Given the company's recent
growth, at the commencement of 2007 sentor management appointed a manager {0 be responsible for an internal audit function

Key Risks
Matters relating to key nsks are discussed on page 6

By order of the Board,

Andrew M Kanter
Company Secretary

13 March 2007
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Remuneration Report

The directors present ther report on directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2006

Compliance

The constitukion and operation of the Remuneration Committee ts in comphance with the principles of Section 1 of the Combined Code,
with the sole compliance exception (B 2 1) relating lo the composttion of the commiltee, which dunng 2006 was composed of two
independent non-executive direciors rather than three

UNAUDITED REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Members of the Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee are Messrs Ariko, McMonigall and Perle  The chairman of the committee 15 Mr Anko

Govemning Principles

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for reviewing and approving generat compensation policies and setting compensation levels
for execute officers  The commiitee alse admunisters incentive compensation plans  Consistent wilh the policies of the Combined Code,
the company's policy for directors' remuneration for 2006 and subsequent financial years s that packages are intended to attract, motivate
and retan drreciors of the calibre needed to achieve the company’s growth program but net detract frem the goals of good corporate
governance Remuneration elsewhere within the comgany 1s taken nto account when determining executive compensation The
company's highest paid employee earns a base salary approximately five times the base salary of the average employee

The main elements of executive pay packages histoncally and for the expected future are

» Base salary and benefits Each senior executive’s basic salary 1s determined by the Committee, taking into account the
performance of the individual and the company's sirategies Employment related benefits (prncipally the provision of a
company car) are also provided where appropniate  Executive directors’ base salanes are low relative lo similarly situated
companies, with perfarmance-based incentive compensation forming the most important factor in overall compensation

e Bonuses In accordance with common practice amongst the company's peers, the company has performance related bonus
plans for certan executive directors, discussed below  Bonuses are paid based on achievement of pre-agreed fargeis

»  Share options The Board beleves that share ownership by directors and staff aligns thew personal interests with those of
shareholders Options form the core element of the company’s performance program, and are granted in small amounts from
tme-to-time: after achievement of stretching performance targets and significant continuing contnbution to value creation
These share option awards are then subject to vesting penods, with inial vesting generally after six or 12 months with the
remainder vesting quarterly over a total of 2 5to 3 5 years

The requirement for individuals to perform prior to granting options has been very effective in motivating performance,
achieving targets and most importantly minmizing reward unconnecied to an individual's performance It enables the company
to specifically talor share option grants to an sndividual's role in an efficient manner, thus avoiding the nsks faced by
companies n a high growth sector of unjust reward assocated with simple, broad targets attached only o option exercises
For example, a programmer might be awarded a small grant for completion of a project ahead of schedule, or the a local
operations manager might be awarded a small grant for effective integration of an acquired company  This method also keeps
indiduals continuously incentivized as a grantee must remain employed to achieve full vesting of the options  Finally, this
method 1s also designed to ensure that individuals are not unpstly rewarded, which the Board believes 1s much more hkely if
targe option grants are made with broad performance targets  Under that method, an individual who was personally
underperforming would undoubtedly be ennched if the company met its own broader performance targets, without making any
materal contnbution

The Board sets reasonable indvidual grant ltmits  As a result, at 31 December 2006, the Board collectively held options over
less than 0 4%, and options granted to the Board dunng 2006 totalled less than 0 1%, of the company's outstanding shares at
31 December 2006 The total number of options granted to Board members iotalled less than 6% of all share cplions
outstanding at 31 December 2006

Share options are atways 1ssued at market value The maxmum number of share options the company 1s permitted to grant Is
up to 10% of the outstanding shares There has been no departure from this policy dunng 2008

Advice

The committee has access to professional advice from outside adwisors should 1t require assistance  Durning 2006 the directors relied on
information contained in generally avalable reports from Delaitte & Touche LLP but did not engage any firm  Directors’ remuneration 1s
considered to be highly ncentive-based given the executive directors’ significant equily holdings 1n the company and the performance-
based bonus plans  The commiltee acted twice by unanimous writien consent dunng 2006
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Remuneration Report

Service Contracts

The company's policies prohibit long-fixed contracts and contractual termination payments  The company requires mutual notice penods
for directors, but never in excess of 12 months  All executive directors have service contracts and all non-executive direclors have
appoiniment letters  All agreements provide for notice of twelve months or less, although do not have a specified fixed term, and all permit
garden leave up to the length of the notice penod  No other amounts are payable on termination All terms of appointment are subject to
the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 and the requirement to retire by rotation on the third anniversary of the previous election

Detalls of directors’ service contracts are avallable on the company's website  No director 15 entilled to any automatic payment by virtue of
early termenation of therr contract or a change in control of the company  Directors' remuneration 15 not linked to share price performance
Detalls of executive directors service contracts are as follows

Executive Directors Contracts Mutual
Date Annua! Salary Bonus Notice Period

Dr Michael Lynch, Chief Executive Cfficer 9 July 1998 £250,000 50% of salary 6 months

Sushovan Hussain, Chief Financial Officer 27 June 2001 £225,000 50% of salary 12 months

Executive directars' bonus targets in 2006 were achieving {1) core revenue growth of at least 15%, (i) core garnings per share grawth of at
least 50% and () operating margin Increase of af least 10% The targets were selected as objective, challenging growth targets designed
to meet the growth objectives of the company In selecting the targels and Jevels of compensation the committee reviewed the plans of
similarly situated technology companies  Each target was achieved

Each executive director 1$ entifled to current benefits generally made avalable 1o all employees and any fees or remuneration he 13
entitled to as a director of Autonomy Payment of salary in lieu of notice 1 permitted on termination  For a fixed penod following the
fermination of employment, each of Dr Lynch and Mr Hussan are prohibited from solicting the company's chents, customers and
employees and from competing with us In a similar geographic area

Messrs Anko, McMonigall and Perle serve as directors under appomtment lefters dated 7 January 2000, 2 July 1998 and 23 February
2000, respectively Under these letters as updated, Messrs Anko, McMonigall and Perle are each entitled to an annual fee of $50,000
Either party o each of these letters may terminale the appontment upon three months' notice or payment of salary in leu of notice
Mr Gaunt serves as a director under an appointment letter dated 9 July 1998 Under thus letter, as updated, Mr Gaunt 15 eniitled to an
annual fee of £18,000 Either party may terminate the appointment upon six months' notice or payment of salary :n Leu of notice

Performance Graph

The accompanying graph sets forth the total shareholder return for the last five years of a holding of the company's shares against the
corresponding change In a hypothetical holding of shares n the FTSE350 Index  This index represents 2 broad equity market index in
which the company, and similar companies, are constiluent members
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Remuneration Report

AUDITED REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Directors’ Remuneration
The total amounts for directors' remuneration were as follows

2006 2005
£ £
Emoluments 801,826 543,878
Gains on exercise of share oplons £9,480 -
Money purchase pension contribufions 3,705 —
875,011 543,878

The following table sets forth for the year ended 31 December 2006, the elements of each director's remuneration package Directors do
not have pension, retirernent or simifar entitlements

Benefits Total
Salary In Kindt" Bonuses Total 2006 2005
£ £ £ £ 3

Executive Directors
Dr Michael R Lynch®@ 228,623 16,370 125,000 369,993 228,841
Sushovan Hussain 208,967 8,012 112,500 320,479 227124
Non-executive Directors
Richard G Gaunt 18,000 - — 18,000 28,159
Barry M Anko {3) 271177 _ - 27177 24,877
John P McMonigall 30,000 - — 30,000 10,000
Richard N Perlet® 27177 — - 21177 24 877

539,944 24,382 237,500 801,826 543,878

(1) Amounts shown reflect the taxable benefit of company cars

{2) Or Lynch serves as an independent non-gxecutve director of Isabel Healthcare Limsted, n which the company has a minonty investment. Or Lynch
did not receive any fees for his service 10 |sabe!

{3) Messrs Anko and Perle s remuneration was increased from $25,000 per annum to $50,000 per anaum on 10 March 2005, and are payable nU S
dollars  Amounts have been translated into stering

Non-gxecutive directors are entiled to be reimbursed for therr reasonable oul-of-pocket expenses ncurred In attending Board meelings
and committees thereof No direclors are entitled to rembursement of non-busmess expenses, and all directors are subject to the
company's global expense policies No director has a deferred bonus

Directors and their Interests
The dweclors who served duning 2006, and therr beneficial nterests @ company shares at the beginaing and end of the year, were as

follows
Ordmnary shares of 1/3p each as of 31 December
2006 2005
Executive
Dr Michael R Lynch 21,844,846 21,843,295
Sushovan Hussain 2,045 —_
Nen-executive Directors

Richard G Gaunt 2,775,101 2,775,101
Barry M Anko — -
John P McMonigall - —
Richard N Perle - -

No director had any non-beneficial interests i the shares of the company at the end of the year On 7 February 2007 Dr Lynch sold
130,000 ordinary shares, representing 0 60% of his hokiings, to cover personal 1ax payments ansing in connection with Autonomy's 2005
nghis ssue  Following this transaction, Or Lynch's total beneficial holding in the Company 1s 21,714,846 Ordinary Shares  On 13
February 2007 Mr Hussain exercised options to acquire 40,000 ordinary shares at an exercise price of £2 28 per share, and sold those
shares at a pnce of £6 94 per share to cover personal tax payments Following these transactions, Mr Hussan's total beneficial holding
n the Company remains unchanged

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the company
granted fo or held by the directors

Autonomy Corporabion plc 16




Share Options

Details of share options granted to executive directors, all granted based on performance, are set out below No executve directors’
share options were cancelled or lapsed, or changed, during the year Vesting and exercise of options 1s subject to continued emplayment
The principals underlying option grants are set forth on page 14

Sushovan Hussain

At At Exercise Market Price Vesting First
1 Jan 2006 Granted Exercised 31 Dec 2006 Pnce at Exercise Schedule" Exercise®  Expiry Date
50,000 — {10,000} 40,000 £228 £4 63 4 year 1yearclif 30/07/02 29/07108
10,000 - - 10,000 £250 - 4 year 1year clff 01141/02 3110108
10,000 — — 10,000 £360 — 4 year, 1 year cliff 150303 14/05/09
25,000 - — 25,000 £305 — 4 year 1 year clff 02/05/03 01105109
5,000 — — 5,000 £108 - 4 year, 1 year cIiff 107103 1007108
100,000 - - 100,000 £120 - 4 year, 1 year chff 19/07/03 18/07109
70,000 - — 70,000 £117 - 3 year, 6 mon chif 06/08/04 05102110
75,000 — — 75,000 £193 - 3year, 6 mon chif 21/05/04 20114110
25,000 - — 25,000 £197 - 3year, 6 mon chff 1011405 09105111
100,000 — - 100,000 £149 - 3 year, 6 mon chff 17/06/05 1611211
10,000 — {10,000 — £000 £461 6 month ¢hff 0212105 0112114
50,000 — — 50,000 £229 - 3year, 6 mon chif 0102106 3010712
- 30,000 — 30,000 £425 - 3year, B mon chif 1511106 14/0513
— 25,000 — 25,000 £3835 - 3year, 6 mon chff 11403107 10/0913
— 40,000 - 40,000 £4.94 - Jyear, 6mon chff 1200607 111213
530,000 95,600 {20,000} 605,000
Michael R Lynch
At At Exercise Market Price Vesting First
1 Jan 2006 Granted Exercised 31 Dec 2006 Price at Exercise Schedule!y Exercise®  Expiry Date
50,000 — — 50,000 £305 — Jyear, 6 mon cliff 22103106 2170912
— 30,000 — 30,000 £425 — Jyear, § mon cliff 151106 14105113
- 25,000 — 25,000 £383 — Jyear, 6 mon cliff 1103407 10/0913
50,000 55,000 — 105,000

() Vesting schedule Is erther over a penod of three or four years, with the firstinstalment exercisable after a "chff” of either six months or one year After
the iibial tranche vesting, addsonal tranches vest in equal quarterty instalments over the remainder of the vesting penod
{2} *Frst exercise” represents the date of the vesting of the inibal tranche when a small portion of the options become avallable for exercise

As of tha date of this report, no non-executive directors held share options  The Board does not intend to grant options to non-executive
directors

Options are granted to all employees in the company on the same terms and at an exgrcise price equal to the far market value on the
date of grant  The fair market value of the company’s ardinary shares as guoted on the London Stock Exchange on 29 December 2006
{the lasi trading day of the year) was £5 115 per ordinary share, and the range during the year ended 31 December 2006 was from £3 34
to £5 435

Long-Term Incentive Plans
The group does not mantain any long term incentive plans

Pension entitlements

Dunng 2006 the company estabbshed a matching pension scheme available to all UK employees with more than three years' service
The scheme provides for the company to make a matching coninbution to an indwidual employee's pension, up ta 3% of the individual's
base salary per annumn  Other than this generally avalable benefit, the directors do not have pension, retirement or simiar entillements
Dr Lynch and Mr Hussam participated in the matching pension scheme dunng 2006 on the same terms available to all UK employees,
and matching contnbutions of £1,950 and £1,755 respectively were paid by the company

Former Directors
iNa payments or awards were made to former directors during the year

By order of the Board,

Andrew M Kanter
Company Secrefary

13 March 2007
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Corporate, Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The company endeavours 10 be honest and fair in its relagonships with customers znd suppliers and to be a good corporale ciizen
respecting the laws of the countnes in which the company operates  Whle the cornpany 15 accountable to its shareholders, the company
also endeavours 1o take into account the terests of all of the company’s stakeholders, mefuding its employees, customers and suppliers,
and the local communiies and environments 1a which the company operates In this context the company takes regular account of the
significance of social, environmental and ethical matters to the business of the company

Sushovan Hussain, Chief Financsal Officer and Board Director, has been appointed by the Board as the director responsible for afl matters
relating to corporate social, ethical, employment and environmental policies  The Board has adopled an ethics policy which sels forh
procedures for commumication of staff 1ssues

The Board 1s commitied to monitonng the company's corporate social responsibility policies n key areas  Through moniionng of day-to-
day activibes by management the company 15 able {0 assess nisks in these areas and identfy actions that may be taken to address these
nsks Whilst specific targets in these areas have not yet been set given the company's relatively small size and operations, as monitoring
continues the Board will consider the setting of specific targets At present, the Board does nof consider it appropnate o link the
management of these nsks to remuneration incentives, given the difficulties in objectively measuning the changes to those asks  Given
the company's relatively small size and low social and environmental imgact, the company believes that there are few nsks to its short and
long tem value ansing from these matters, although it consicers potential 1o enhance value by responding to these Issues appropriately
The Board believas the company has adequate information to assess these matters, and effective systems for managing any nsks The
company's website incfudes a section dedicated to corporate ethical, employment and environmental issues

Whilst the Board considers that matenial nsks ansing from social, ethical, employment and environmental 1ssues are limited, given the
nature of the company's business, policies have been adopled In key areas to ensure that such nsks are hmited  Examples of policies
and practices In these areas are given below

Employment Policies

Autonomy employs over 900 people and in order to continue to grow as a business, the company needs to continue 1o recrud and retain
only the best lalent Therefore it 1s the company's policy to pursue practices that are sensitive to the needs of ils people  The company
sirves for equal opportunities for all of s employees and does not tolerate harassment, of or discnmination agalnst, its staff The
company's priorities are

e  Providing a safe workplace with equality of opportunily and diversity through our employment policies

«  Encouraging our people to reach therr full polenbial through career development and promotion from within where possible

+  Communicaling openly and transparently within the bounds of commercial confidentiality, whilst istening to our people and
taking into account their feedback

*  Recogmizing and rewarding our peaple for ther contnbution and encouraging share ownership at all levels

The company respects the rule of law within all junsdictions n which 1t operates and supports appropnate internationally accepted
standards including those on human nghts  The company's equal opportunities policies prohibit discnrmination on grounds such as race,
gender, religion, sexual onentation or disability  This policy ncludes, where practicable, the continued employment of those who may
become disabled durning their employment  The company's policies stnve 1o ensure that all decisions about the appontment, treatment
and promotion of employees are based entirely on ment

Environmental Policies

It 15 the company's policy to ensure, by encouraging environmental best practice in the business, that its operations have as litle
environmental Impact as 1$ consistent wiih its business needs The effect on the environment of the company's activities are monitored,
where appropriate, with regard to the low overall enviranmental impact of its prmary activiles as a software publisher As a developer of
software the company has no manufaciunng faciliies and ils premises are composed exclusively of offices  Staff make use of computers
to generate intellectual property  This ivolves netther hazardous substances nor complex waste emissions  The vast majonty of the
company's sales comprise software that 1s normally delivered electronically to customers  Outmoded office equipment and computers are
resold or recycled to the extent praclicable

The company recognises the increasing importance of environmental 1ssues and these are discussed at Board level if appropnate A
number of nitiatives continued in 2006 An environmental action plan s implemented at group and departmental level through vanous
iniatives  These nclude monitoning resource consumption and waslte creation so thal when targets are set for improvement they are
realiste and meaningful, ensunng exising controls continue to operate satisfactonly and working with suppliers to improve environmental
management along the supply chain  The company has recycling faciliies in all of s primary offices, and waste paper 1s mimmised by
promoting paperess processes and downloadable software products  Renewable energy sources are also being investigaled The
provision of cycle sheds, showers and changing facilities al the company's Cambnidge, San Francisco, Sunnyvale and Dallas offices
facilitate greener commuiing, and the extensive provision of telephone and wideo conferencing equipment offer an allemative to
infemational {ravel, where appropnaie  The company's environmental policy 1s published on its website
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Corporate, Social and Environmental Responsibilities

As noted above, the company monitors key consumplion indicators, most effectively at its headquarters in Cambridge, UK where it has
the fargest number of employees The following chart sets forth comparative consumption for the past two years, measured versus the
company's revenues dunng those penods

Tons CO2 per $m Revenug
2006 2005
Gas 056 092
Lanfill 542 2075
Energy use 228 921
Supplied water (m3) 2396 36 51

Chantable Polictes

The company maintans a number of chantable givng policies  The company's core phitanthropic foundation under the corporate
commiiment program Is education The company also annvally budgets for specific chantable requests from individual staff members, in
areas where the company has an opporunily 1o make a significant and measurable impact in the non-profit sector  The company's
matching gift programme matches employee donations to non-profit organizations meeting the company's requirements for chanitable
donations  Finally, the company permis employees lo volunteer a certain number of hours of paid tme per year to the chanty of their
choice provided that the charitable crganization meets the company’s general requirements for chantable donations

The company actively encourages every employee to work together to meet the requirements of all of the above policies

By order of the Board,

Andrew M Kanter
Company Secretary

13 March 2007
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Autonomy Corporation plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the "financial statements”} of Autonomy Corporation ple for the year
ended 31 December 2006, which comprise the Consolidated income Statement, the Group and Parerd Company Balance Sheels, the
Consolidated and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the
consohidated related notes 1 to 26 and the parent company related notes 1 to 10 These financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein  We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that 1s descnbed as having
been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with secticn 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors' report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone
ather than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, ar for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibiliies for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in
the Statement of Directors’ Respensibiliies

Our responsibility 15 1o audit the financial statements and the part of the Direclors' Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing {UK and ireland}

We report ta you our apinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far view and whether the financial statements and the
part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation  We also report to you whether n our opinion the information
given In the Directors' Report 15 consistent with the financial statements  The information given in the Duectors’ Report includes that
specific nformation presented n the Financial Review and the financial results section of the letter from the CEQ that 1s cross referred
from the Enhanced Business Review section of the Directors’ Repart

In addition we report to you if, n our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audtt, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine prowsions of the 2003
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report (f it does not  We are not
required to consider whether the beard's slatements on internal control cover all nisks and conteols, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the group's corporate governance procedures o its nisk and control procedures

We read the other information contained n the Annual Report as described in the contenis section and consider whether It 1s consistent
with the audited financial statements  We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenial Inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibiliies do not extend o any further information outside the Annual
Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audtt in accordance with ntemnational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit ncludes examination, on a lest basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements and the
part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited [t also mcludes an assessment of the significant estmates and judgments made
by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropniate 1o the group's and
company's arcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
pravide us with sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the pari of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are fres from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other Jegulanity or eror In formiag our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Dhrectors'
Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion
« the group financial statemenis give a true and farr view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the
state of the group's affars as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit for the year then ended,
+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union as apphed m acoordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the siate of the parent company’s affaus as
at 31 December 20086,
» the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accardance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and
« the nformation given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Separate opinion In relation to IFRSs
As explained in Note 2 to the group financial statements, the group in addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, has also comphied with the IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Beard

In our opinion the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31
December 2006 and of its profit for the year then ended

e
D%ﬂ/:TﬂlLf | wuu LJ Mm A(I[\L/Lv(j .

Chartered Accountants and Reqgistered Auditors
Cambndge, England
13 March 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 3.4 250,682 96,032
Cost of revenues (exc! amortisation) (23,628) {5,914)
Amortization of purchased intangibles (7,861} {1,591}
Cost of revenues __ {31.588) (7,505)
Gross profit 219,093 88,527
Research and development {51,680) (21,823
Sales and marketing (86,417) (40,326)
General and administrative (24,707} (11,146)
Other costs
Post-acquisiion restructunng costs 5 — (5,764)
Loss on disposal of investment — (297)
Fair value adjustments of investments (300) (487)
(Loss) gain on foreign exchange (449) 247
Total operating cos's {163,553) {79,696)
Profit from operations ] 55,540 8,831
Share of loss of associate 14 (258) —
Interest receivable 8 3,651 3,797
Interest payable (2,614) -
Profit before tax 56,319 12,628
Tax g (17,234) (3678)
Profit for the period 36,085 8,950
Earnings per share
Basic 10 02 007
Diluted 10 02 007
Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Financial Measures
2006 2005
$'000 $°000
Gross profit 219,093 88,527
Amortisation of purchased ntangibles 7,961 1,591
Gross profit {adjusted)* 227,054 90,118
Profit before tax 56,319 12,628
Loss (gan) on foresgn exchange 449 (247)
Amortization of purchased atangibles 7,961 1,591
Loss on disposal of Investment — 207
Fair value adjustments of investments 300 487
Share-based compensation 3,861 1,423
Pest acquisiion restructunng costs — 5,764
Sharg of loss of associate 258 —
Profit before tax (adjusted)” 69,148 21,943
Provision for tax (21,229) (6,391)
Net profit {(adjusted)* 47,919 15,652
Profit from operations 55,540 8,831
Amortization of purchased intangibles 7,961 1,501
Share-based compensation 3,861 1,423
Post-acquisition restructuning costs — 5,764
Loss on disposal of investment — 297
Farr value adjustment of nvestments 300 487
Loss {gain) on foreign exchange 44g (247)
Profit from operations {adjusted)” 68,111 18,146

* Non-IFRS financal measures are used o calculate *adjusted” results discussed on page 6
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2006

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Equity and other investments
Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Inventones

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Current habilities

Trade and other payables
Bank loan

Tax labilites

Deferred revenue
Provisions

Net curren! assets

Non-current habitities
Bank loan
Other payables

Provisions

Total labilities
Net assets

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve
Own shares

Stock compensation reserve
Translation reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

2006 2005

Note §'000 $°000
1 415,758 398,770
12 44,832 64,423
13 6,226 8,610
14 3810 1,727
16 7,155 6,735
477,781 480,265
15 85,706 64,710
605 198
121,059 68,565
207,370 133,473
685,151 613,738
17 (21,604) {33,289}
18 {16,283) (16,283}
(2,400} {3.311)
{52,452} (51,853)
19 (2,953} (14,995}
(95,692) (119,741)
111,678 13,732
18 (16,283) (32,567)
(311) (606)
19 {1,243) (1,456)
(17,837) (34,629)
{113,529) {154,370
571,622 459,368
20 1027 978
474,645 422,033
135 135
21 (1,017 {1,775}
5,688 2,052
19,956 9,401
71,188 26,544
571,622 459,368

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on 13 March 2007 They were signed on its

behalf by

At

Dr Michaei R Lynch
Chtef Executive Officer and Co-Founder
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2006

Caprtal
redemption
Share capital Share capital Share premium reserve Own shares Sub-total

{number} $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At1 January 2005 108,110,108 557 117,778 131 (1,775) 116,691
Retained profit — - — — — -
Shares repurchased (593,942) (4 - 4 — -
Stock compensation charge - - - - — —
Shares options exercised 12,281,426 76 46,686 — - 46,762
Rights 1ssue 59,795,165 349 257,569 - - 257,918
Translation of overseas ops —- - - - - —
At 31 December 2005 179,592,757 g78 422,033 135 {1,775} 421,31
Retained profit — — - —_— — —
Stock compensation charge — - - — - -
Share options exercised 8,243,447 49 52,612 - - 52,661
EBT options exercised — - - — 758 758
Translation of overseas ops - - - - - -
At 31 December 2006 187,836,204 1,027 474,645 135 {1.017) 474,790

Sub-total Stock comp'n Translation Retained

forwarded resenve reserve earnings Total

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
At 1 January 2005 116,691 651 30,643 18,956 166,941
Retained profit — — — 8,950 8,950
Shares repurchased — - - (3.611) (3611)
Stock compensation charge — - — 2,249 2,248
Share options exercised 46,762 — — — 46,762
Deferred tax on share options - 1,401 — - 1,401
Rights 1ssue 297,918 — - - 257,918
Translation of overseas operations — - (21,242) - (21,242)
At 31 December 2005 421,371 2,052 9401 26,544 459,368
Retawned profit — — - 39,085 39,085
Stock compensation charge — 3,861 - - 3,861
Share options exercised 52,661 - - - 52,661
EBT options exercised 758 (225) - — 533
Deferred tax on share options — - - 5,559 5,559
Translation of overseas operations - - 10,555 - 10,555
At 31 Decerber 2006 474,790 5,688 19,956 71,188 571,622
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

4

Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities
Interest received
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Investment in joint venture and associates
Purchases of ntangible assets
Expenditure on product development
Acquisition of subsidianes (net of cash acquired)
Net cash used In investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of nghts
Proceeds from 1ssuance of shares
Purchase of own shares
Interest on bank loan
Repayment of bark loan
Drawdown of bank loan
Net cash from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) (n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2006 2005
Note $:000 $'000
22 39,475 16,940
3,651 3,797
(1,534) (551)
(2474) (1,064)
(170) {1,468)
(3,172 -
(22,709) (353,303)
{26,408) (352,587)
— 257,927
50,222 2,840
— (2.212)
{2,614} —
(16,284) —
- 48,850
31,324 307,505
44,391 (268,142)
68,565 106,793
8,103 {10,086)
121,059 68,565

Included within cash and cash equivalents 15 $2 8 mulion (2005 $2 8 milion) in relation to the joint venture which has been included on

the consolidated balance sheet using proportionate consclidation

Costs ncluded within acquisition of subsidiaries relate to costs paid during 2006 1n respect of the Venty, Inc acquisition completed in

December 2005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 General information

Autonomy Corporation plc 1s a company incorporated 1n England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 The registered office 1s at
Autonomy House, Cambndge Business Park, Cowley Road, Cambndge CB4 OWZ, UK The nature of the group’s operations and its
pnncipal activities are set out on page 8

The company’s funchonal currency 1s sterling as that is the currency of the pnmary econom:c environment in which the company operates
The presentational currency 1s dollars as that is the currency of the pnmary economitc environment in which the group operates  Foreign
aperations are included In accordance with the policies set out in note 2

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were n 1ssue but not yel effective

IFRS 7 Financial instruments Disclosures, and the related amendment 1o [AS 1 on capital disclosures
IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

IFRIC 5 Right to interests ansing from decommissioning, restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds
IFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29 ‘Financial reporting in hypennflationary economies’
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 8 Reassessment of embedded denvatives

IFRIC 10 Intenim reporting and impairments

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will have no matenal impact on the
financial statements of the group or company, except for addilonat disclosures on capital and financial instruments when the relevant
standards come Into effect for the year ending 31 December 2007

2 Significant accounting policies
a)  Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopled by the Eurapean Union and therefore the group financiel
statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basts, except for the revaluation of trade mvestments and financial
instruments  The pnncipal accounting policies adopted by the company are set out below

b)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entities confrolled by the company {its
subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year Control 15 achieved where the company has the power to govem the financial and
operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtan benefits from its activities

On acquisition, the assets, liabiliies and contingent liabiities of a subsidiary are measured at therr fair values at the date of acquisition
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr values of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill  Any defliciency
of the cost of acquisiion befow the far values of the identifiable net assets acquwed (1e discount on acquisition) is credited to profit and
loss in the penod of acquisiion  The interest of minoniy shareholders 1s stated at the minordy’s proportion of the far values of the assels
and habilies recogmsed  Subsequently, any losses applicable to the minonty interest n excess of the minonty interest are allocated
aganst the interests of the parent

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquision or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropniate  Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financal
statements of subsidianies to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation
¢)  Jont ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the method of propartionate consolidation  The application of this method combines on a line-by-
line basis the assets, habilibes, wcome and expense of jont ventures with those of the group  If the group contributes or sells assets to a
joint venture only that portion of ihe gain or loss altnbutable to the nterests of the other venturers 15 recognized

Autcnomy Corporation plc %




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Sigmficant accounting policies {continued)
d} Investments in associates

An associate 15 an entity over which the group 1s in a posibon to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint cantrol, through
participation n he financial and operating policy decsions of the investee  Significant influence 1s the power to participate the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but 1s not controk or jont control over those policies

The results and assets and liabiities of associates are ncorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting
excepl when classified as held for sale {see below) (nvestments in associates are camed in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by
post-acquistion changes i the group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual
investments Losses of the associales in excess of the group’s interest in those associales are not recogrised  Any excess of the cost of
acquisiion over the group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate at the date of acquisiiion s recognised as
goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the group's share of the farr values of the sdentifiable net assets of the associate
at the date of acquisition {1 & discount on agquisition} 1s credited in profit or loss n the penod of acquisition  Where a group company
transacts with an associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in the relevant associate
Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset ransferred in which case appropriate provision 1s made for impairment

el Goodwil

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisiton over the group’s interest i the fair value of the
identfiable assets and habuiies of a subsidiary, associate of joinfly controlled entity at the date of acquisition  Goodwill 1s recogaised as
an asset and reviewed for imparment at least annually  Any impairment 15 recognised immediately in profit or Joss and 15 not
subsequently reversed  On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or [oirtly controlled entty, the atinbutable amount of goodwill 1s included n
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

For the purpuse of Impairment testing, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combinafion Cash-gensrating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there 1 an indication that the unit may be imparred  If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the
carrying amount of the uni, the impairment loss 1s allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit  An impairment lass recognized
for goodwill 1s not reversed in a subsequent perod

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous US GAAP amounis subject to
being tested for impairment at the date of transition to IFRS

i Revenue recognifion

The group generates revenues from licensing the nghts to use Its software products directly to end-users and ndirectly through resale by
resellers  The group also generates revenues from sales of consulting, customer support and training services perfarmed for customers
that licence its products Revenues from software licence agreements are recognised where there 1s persuasive evidence of an
agreement with a customer {contract and/or tinding purchase order), delivery of the software has taken place, collectabuity 1s probable
and the fee (s fixed and determinable  If an acceptance penod 15 required, revenues are recognised upon the earlier of customer
acceptance of the expiration of the acceptance period  Revenue 1s recogrized on contracts with credit terms of up to one year providing
that the customer passes defined credit-worthiness checks  If significant post-delivery obligations exist or if a sale 1s subject to customer
acceplance, fevenues are deferred until no significant obligalions remain or acceptance has occurred

The group enters into reseller arangements that typically pravide for fees payable to the group based on agreed discounted license rates
Sales are generally recognised as reported by the reseller in resale of the group’s products to end-users Sales are recogmised If all
products subject to resale are delivered in the current pariod, no nght of return policy exists, collection 15 probable and the fee 1s fixed and
determinable  The group also enters info OEM agreements that may prowide for the payment of advance license royalties and ongoing
license royaity obligations In certan circumstances, advance royalties are recogrused wpon the initial contract if all products subject to
sub-licensing are delivered n the current penod, no nght of retun policy exsts, coflection 15 prebable and the fee 15 fixed and
determinable

Revenues from customer support services are recognised rateably over the term of the support penod  If customer support services are
included free or at a discount i a licence agreement, these amaunts are allocated out of the hicense fee at therr fair market value based
on the value established by independent sale of the customer support services to cusiomers

Consulting revenues are primanly related to implementation services performed on a tme and matenals basis under separable service
arrangements related to the installation of the group's software products Revenues from consuling and traning services are recognised
as services are performed  If a transaction includes both license and service elements, licence fee revenue 1s recognised upon shipment
of the saftware, provided services do not inglude significant customisation or modification of the base product and the payment terms for
licenses are not subject to acceptance cntenia  In cases where licence fee payments are contingent upon the acceptance of services,
revenues from both the licence and the service elements are deferred until the acceptance criteria are met
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cost of icence revenues includes the cost of royalties due on third party licences, cost of product media, product dupheation and manuals
Deferred revenues pnmanly relate to customer support fees, which have been invoiced to the customer por to the performance of these
services Oeferred revenue Is generally recognised over a penod of one lo three years

g) Leasing
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a siraighi-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
h}  Forewgn currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity concemed are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transachions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
refranslated nto US dollars at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date  Non-monetary assets and hiabilities carned at fair value that
are denominated 1n foreign curencies are translated at the rates prevaiing at the date when the fair value was determined  Gains and
losses ansing on retranstation are included in net profit or loss for the penod, except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary
assets and habilites where the changes i fair value are recognised directly in equity

On consolidation, the assets and habiliies of the group's overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevaiing on the balance
sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod unless exchange rates fluctuate
signficantly Exchange differences ansing, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the group's translation reserve  Such
translation differences are recognised as income of as expenses in the penod tm which the operation is disposed of

Goodwall and fair value adjustments anising on the acquistion of a foreign entity are denominated as assets and habilihes of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate

1) Profit from operations

Profi from operations Is stated before mvestment income and finance costs

j)  Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred {ax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome statement
because 1t excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes tems that are never
taxable or deductible The group’s liability for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance
sheet liablily method Deferred lax habiliies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that It 15 probable that taxable profits will be avalable agansi which deductible temporary differences can be
utised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised f the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the initral recogrition {other
than in a business cambination) of other assets and hiabilites 1n a iransaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting prafit

Deferred tax babilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments i subsidianes and associates, and
interests i joint ventures, except where the group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the liability 1s setlled or the assel 1s realised
Deferred tax 1s charged or crediled i the income statement, except when it relates fo tems charged or credited directly to equity, 1n which
case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are offset when thera 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
labiisies, and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the group intends 1o settle its current tax assets
and hiabilities on a net basis
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2 Sigmficant accounting policies {(continued)
k)  Propeity, plant and equipment
Leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss

Depreciation is charged so as to wrte off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction, over therr esimated useful
Iives, using the straight-ine method, on the following bases

Leasehold improvements  Over shorter of economic useful life and lease term
Fixiures and equipment  Over 3-5 years

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retrement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in income

1) Internaily-generated ntangible assels - research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research aciviles 1s recogmised as an expense In the penod in which it 15 incurred

An intemally-generated intangible asset ansing from the group’s product development 1 recognised only if all of the following conditions
are met

- an asset s crealed that can be identified {(such as software and new processes},

- Itis probable that the asset created will generate future econemic benefits,

- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and

- the product from which the asset anses meets the group's cnlena for technical feasibility

Intemilly-generated mtangible assels are amorised on a straight-ine basis over their useful kves, which 1s 3 years  Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 1S recognised as an expense In the period in which 1tis incurred

m)  Other intangible assels excluding goodwil

Other intangible assets excluding goodwill are measured iniially at purchase cost and are amorlised on a straight-ine basis over therr
estimated useful lives, on the following bases

Patents and trademarks 3 years
Software licences 3years
Purchased intangibles 3-12 years

n}  Impairment of tengible and intangible assets excluding goodwil

Al each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any
indication that those assets have suffered an imparment loss  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1§
estimated in order to determine the extent of the imparment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
ingependent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

An intangible asset with an indefinie useful ife 15 tesled for imparrment annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may
be imparred

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use  In assessing value in use, the estmated fulure cash
flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of
money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than ts carrying amount, the carying amount of the
assel (cash-generating unit) 15 reduced 1o its recoverable amount  An impairment loss 15 recognised as an expense immediaiely, unless
the relevant asset 1s camed at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss Is treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) 1s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but s0 that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating uni} in prior years A reversal of an impawment loss
Is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 15 camed al a revalued amount, i which case the reversal of the
impairment loss Is treated as a revalualion Increase

o} Inveniones

tnventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
p)  Fnancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiites are recognised on the group's balance shest when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the nstrument

g) Trade receivables

Trade recevables do not carry any interest and are stated at ther nominal value Appropnate allowances for estimated wtecoverable
amounts are recognized in profit or loss when there 15 objective ewidence thai the asset 1s imparred

f) Financwal habity and equiy

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An
equity nstrument 1s any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its habiliies

s}  Bank borrowings

Interest-beaning bank loans are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct i1ssue costs  Finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis in profit or loss using the efiective
interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the penod in which
they anse

{}  Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at their nominal value

u}  Equiy instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs
v)  Prowisions

Provisions are recognized when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the group will be
requred to setlle that obligaion Prowisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance shest date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

w)  Equdy and other mvestments

Equity and other invesiments are measured al the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs to self  These invesiments have
been designated as far value through the prefit and loss account

x)  Share-based payments

The group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments  In accordance with the transifional pravisions, IFRS 2 has
been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2004

The group 15sues equity-setiled share-based payments o certam employees  Equity-seftted share-based payments are measured at far
value at the date of grant The far value determuned at the grant date of the equity-setiled share-based paymenls 15 expensed on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting penod, based on the group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest Farr value 1s measured by
use of a Black Scholes model

3 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
a)  Cntical judgements n applying the group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, which are descnbed i note 2, management have made the following
Judgements that have the most signficant effect on the amounis recognised in the financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are discussed below)

Revenue recognition
There are no significant judgements which management consider have a matenal impact on the financial statements The accounting
policy set out i note 2 has been followed with no significant judgements required to be made
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3 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)
b} Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumpuons concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant nsk of causing a matenal adusiment to the camying amounts of assets and habiiies within the next financial year, are
discussed below

Recoverahility of internally generated intangible assets

During the year $3 2 million of internally generated intangible assets were capialised as required in accordance with 1AS 38 Management
have assessed expected revenues to be generated from these assets and deemed that no adjustment 1s required to the carrying value of
the assets

Impairment of goodwall

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) to which goodwill
has been aliocated The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows of the CGU and a suitable discount
rate n order to calculate present value The camyng amount of goodwil at the balance sheet date was $4158 million
(2005 $398 8 mdlon)

Trade receivables

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade recewables approximates ther far value A provision has been made for
estimated unrecoverable amounts based on informatien avallable to management Changes in collectability of trade receivables may
impact the level of provision required

4  Segmental analysis

Whilst the group currently operates under a number of different divistons, the group's core fechnology, types of revenue and associated
costs and retums are comparable Each of these divisions 1s founded on the group's unique Inteligent Data Operating Layer, the group's
core infrastructure for automating the handling of all forms of unstructured information As a result, the group maintains only one
reportable business segment, as 1s reflected in the reporting i this annual report

The group's operations are located primanly in the United Kingdom and the US  The company also has a significant presence in a
number of other European counines as well as China, Japan, Singapore, Australia and Canada The following table provides an analysis
of the group's sales by geographical market, imespective of the ongin of the goodsfservices

Revenue by geographical market

2006 2005

$'000 $'000
Americas 164,130 55,516
Res! of world 86,552 40,516
250,682 96,032

Rest of world ncludes UK/Europe which was shown separately in prewious periods These segments have been combined as
management befieves the economic environments are similar and have entarged the presentation accordingly

Segment mformation about these geographical segments 15 presented below

Result 2006 2005
Amencas ROW Total Americas ROW Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Segment result 35,090 20,199 56,289 2438 12,694 15,132
Unallocated corp expenses - -
Post-acg’n restr costs — {5.764)
Loss on disp of investm't - (297
Far value ad) of investm't (300} (487)
(Loss) gain on foreign ex (449) 247
Qperating profit 55,540 8,831
Share of results of assoc (258) -
Interest recervable 3,651 3,797
Interest payable (2,614) —
Profit before tax 56,319 12,628
Tax {17.234) {3,678)
Profi for the period 39,085 8,950
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4  Segmental analysis {continued)

Other Information 2006 2005
Americas ROW Total Amenicas ROW Total
§'000 $000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Prop , plant & equip add's B75 659 1,534 88 430 518
Putchased intangible add's (13,352) — {13,352) 61,289 — 61,289
Other intangible asset add's 2,397 945 3,342 — 1,425 1425
Depreciation 3,366 860 4,226 459 631 1,090
Amortisation 7934 678 8,612 1,450 1,041 2491
Balance Sheet
Segment assets 138,046 129,187 267,233 124,673 90,295 214,968
Interests it associales 2,160 —
Goodwill 415,758 398,770
Consolidated total assels 685,151 613,728
Segment hiabilities (89,341} {24,188) (113,529) (130,412) (23,958} (154,370)
Unallocated corp liabilities — —
Consolidated total liabiites {113,529) (154,370)
5  Profit from operations
Profit from operations has been amved at after charging/{crediting)
2006 2005
$'000 §'000
Net foreign exchange losses (gains) 449 (247)
Research and development costs
Expensed In Income statement 51,680 21923
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,226 1,090
Amortisation of intangibles 8,612 249
Staff costs (see note 7) 109,504 35,383
Restructunng costs (see below) - 5,764
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services (sea note 6) 587 625

The restructunng costs relate to redundancy payments and related costs in relation to reductions in force following the acquisitions of etalk
Corporation ($784,000) and Verity, Inc {$4,980,000) n 2005

6  Auditors’ remuneration

A more detalled analysis of audstors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis 1s as follows

2006 2005

$'000 $'000
Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual accounts 450 548

Fees payable o the company's auditors and their associates for other services to the group

- the audit of the company's subsidianes pursuant to legistation 137 79
Total audit fees 587 625
- other services pursuant to legislation 489 251
- lax services — 38
- corparate finance services — 1,236
Total non-audit fees 489 1,525

A descnphion of the work of the audit commiflee 1s set out in the carporate governance statement beginning on page 11 and indudes an
explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence 15 safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors

The corporate finance fees n 2005 related to due diligence work in connection with the etalk and Venty acquisitions
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7 Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was

2006 2005
{number) {number)
Administration and management 120 41
Technical personnel 524 169
Sales and markeling 259 108
903 318
Aggregate remuneration comprised $'000 $:000
Wages and salares 96,782 32,392
Social secunty costs 12,524 2,945
Pension costs 198 46
109,504 35,383
8  Interest receivable
2006 2005
$'000 §°000
Interest on bank deposits 3,651 3,797
9 Tax
2006 2005
$'000 §'000
Current tax
Current year 17,593 896
Prior year {359} 2,682
17,234 3578
Deferred tax
Current year - 100
17,234 3678

UK Corporation tax 15 calculated at 30% (2005 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other unsdictions 15
calculated at the rales prevailing In the respective junsdictions  The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit as set forth In the
Income statement as follows

2006 2005
$'000 % $000 %

Profit before tax 56,319 12,628

Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2005 30%) 16,896 30 0% 3788 0%
Tax effect of exp not deductible in determining taxable profit 1,080 19% 405 32%
Research and Development tax credits (554) {1 0%} (232) (18%}
Current tax ben of utilisation of tax losses net prev recognized {1,167 {2 1%) (392) {3 1%)
Deferred 1ax benefit of losses not previously recognized - - (505) {4 0%)
Faoreign exchange on opening balances 83 01% 403 32%
Effect of different tax rates of subs operating in other junsdictions 1,255 23% 211 16%
Prior year adjustment {359) (0 6%} — -
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 17,234 306% 3678 201%
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10 Eamings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earmings per share 1s based on the following data

2006 2005
$000 $'000
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share being net profit 39,085 8,950
Number of shares
Wesghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earmings per share 184,409 130,574
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Share options 2,567 555
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 186,976 131,129

The denominators for the purposes of calculating both basic and dituted earmings per share have been adjusted fo reflect the nghts issue
in December 2005 as required by IAS 33 Earnings per Share

Eamings per share {adjusted) is calculated by dividing the net profit (adjusted) amounts shown on page 22 by the share denominators

shown above
11 Goodwll

$'000
Cost
At 1 January 2005 31,014
Acquisition of Venty, Inc 297,162
Acquisition of etalk Corporation 73,543
Acquisition of other subsidiaries 3,662
Exchange differences {6,611)
At 1 January 2006 398,770
Movements In relation to Venty (see below) 12,724
Acquisitton of other subsidianies (see below} 2844
Exchange differences 1420
At 31 December 2006 415,758
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January 2005 -
At 1 January 2006 -
At 31 December 2006 -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 415,758
At 31 December 2005 398,770

The increase duning 2006 in relabion to Venty, Inc 15 pnmarly a result of the finalisation of the purchase price allocation The reduction in
purchased intangibles resulted 1n a comespanding merease In goodwill (less deferred tax} The goodwil ansing in the Venty, etalk and
Global Linxs acquisitions 15 attnbutable 1o anticipated future operating synergies from the combination

The acquistion of other subsidianes relates to a deferred consideration payment of €2 mullion n relation to the Global Linxs acquisition
completed in September 2005

The group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently 1f there are indications that goodwill might be impaved The group has one
reporiable business segrment and all goodwill 1s associated with that segment  The recoverable amounts of the CGU 1s determined from
value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growih rates and
expected changes to selling pnces and direct costs dunng the penod A discount rate of 6% has been used which 1s the interest rate pad
on the group's borrowings Likewise, changes in selling pnces and direct costs are based on recent history and expectations of future
changes in the market

The group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financia! budget approved by management and exirapolates
cashflows for the coming ten years based on estimated growth rates For the purposes of this calculation management have used a
growih rate of 15% for year 1 and then 5% thereafter Having performed imparment testing, no impairment has been dentified, and
therefore no impairment loss has been recognised in either year

Autonomy Corporation ple 3




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Other intangible assets

Internally
Software Patents and generated Purchased
licenses other intangibles software intangibles Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2005 12,232 813 — — 13,045
Exchange differences (992) (87} — — {(1,079)
Additions - acquired 469 956 — — 1425
Acquired on acquisiton of Venty — — — 50,000 50,000
Acquired on acquisition of etalk — — — 11,289 11,289
At 31 December 2005 11,709 1,862 - 61,289 74,680
Exchange differences 890 233 197 — 1420
Movements In relation to Venty - - — (13,390 (13,390}
Movements in relation to etalk - - — (162) (162}
Additions — internally generated - - 3172 — KR
Additions - acquired 170 - — - 170
Disposals — (1,088) — — {1,088)
At 31 December 2006 12,869 827 3,369 47,737 64,802
Amortisation
At 1 January 2005 8,267 329 — — 8,596
Exchange differences {795} (35} — - (830}
Charge for the year 1,285 385 — 821 2491
At 31 December 2005 8,757 679 — 821 10,257
Exchange differences 1,004 65 32 - 1,101
Charge for the year 1,280 (59) 400 6,991 8612
At 31 December 2006 11,041 €85 432 7,812 19,970
Carrying amount
At 31 Decembar 2006 1,828 142 2937 39,925 44,832
At 31 December 2005 2,952 1,003 — 60,468 64,423

The prior year annual report included a prefiminary estimate In relation to the purchase pnce allocation for the acquisiion of Venity, Inc
that was completed on 23 December 2005 The individual assets together with their estmated econom:c useful lives, following completion
of the format valuation by Duff & Phelps, are summansed in the tables below

Estimated
Final allocation useful lfe
$000 Years
Purchased technology 22,600 Jto7 years
Customer relationships 2,870 5 years
Trade names 11,140 3to 10 years

36,610

The above values resulted i a reduction in the vaiue of purchased intangibles acquired in the acquisition of Venty, inc of $13 4 million
The etalk final purchase accounting had a similar adjustment of $0 2m
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures and Computer
Motor vehicles Impravements fittings equipment Total
$°000 $000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2005 9 1,914 1,572 6,315 9,810
Additions — 34 22 462 518
Acquisiton of subsidiary 1 960 459 4,480 5,900
Exchange differences (1) (291) (505) {414} {1,211)
At 1 January 2006 9 2617 1,548 10,843 15,017
Additions - 176 130 1,228 1,534
Disposals - - - {1,949) {1,949)
Exchange differences — 114 204 632 1,040
At 31 December 2006 9 2907 1972 10,754 15,642
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2005 8 517 1,301 4,472 6,299
Charge for the year — 124 97 869 1,090
Exchange differences — (158) (489) {335) (982)
At 1 January 2006 9 483 909 5,006 6,407
Charge for the year — 469 336 3421 4,226
Disposals —_ - — (1942 {1,942)
Exchange differences — 84 181 480 725
At 31 December 2006 9 1,036 1,406 6,965 9,416
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 — 1,871 566 3,789 6,226
At 31 December 2005 - 214 639 5,837 8610

At 31 December 2006, the graup had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2005 $nil)

14 Equity and other investments

2006 2005

$'000 5000
Associates 2,160 -
Other investments 1,650 1,727
3,810 1,727

a) Investments m associates

$'000
Additions 2418
Share of loss of assocate for year (258)
A1 31 December 2006 2,160

Durng Qctober 2006 the company acquired a 40% share in a Chinese operation as part of ts joint venture operations  Further
disclosures n relation to this entity are on page 42 of the financial statements  The aggregated amounts relating to associates for the
penod from March 2006 {commencement of trading) to December 2006 are

$000
Total assels 4,440
Total habtlties {852)
Loss for the penod (2,103)
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14 Equity and other investments (continued)

b)  COther nvestments

$'000
At 1 January 2005 2,353
Farr value adjustmenl (487)
Disposals (297)
Exchange movements 158
At 31 December 2005 1,727
Farr value adjustment {300)
Exchange movements 223
At 31 December 2006 1,650

The invesiments included above represent invesiments In pnvately owned companies  The fair values of these investments are based on
latest financial information available for each entity The carrying value 1s considered in light of the net asset value and other known
factors which have an impact on the valuahion of the respective entities

15 Other financial assets

a) Trade and other receivables

2006 2005

$'000 $'000
Trade receivables, net 77,252 55,363
Other receivables 8,454 9,347
85,706 64,710

The average credit panod for frade recesvables 1s 96 (2005 87) days The directers consider that the carrying amount of trade and other
recavables approximates ther far value A prowision of $5,742,000 (2005 $5,567,000) has been made for estimated imecoverable
amounts based on information available to management Bad debt provisioning 15 a key source of estimation uncertainty for the company
b)  Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash compnse cash held by the group and shortterm bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or fess
The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr farr value

¢)  Credif nsk

The group's prncipal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables

The group's credit msk 15 pamanly atinbutable to s trade recevables  The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances
for doubtful recevables, estimated by the group's management based on pnor expenence and therr assessment of the current economic
environment  The credit nsk on hqud funds 1s lmited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies

Other than as noted in a) above, the group has no significant concentrabion of credit nisk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparbies and customers
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16 Deferred tax asset

Amounts
deductible when Stock option

Tax losses paid or utilized losses Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2005 6,710 — 438 7,148
Credited 10 equity - - 2,249 2,249
Transfers from current tax creditor {2,808) - — {2,808}
Charged to income {2.817) 2,708 209 100
Foreign exchange movement — — 48 46
At 1 January 2006 1,085 2,708 2,942 6,735
Impact of acquisiiion of subsidiary — — 5,360 5,360
Transfers from current tax creditor {1,085} (2,708) {5,950} {9,743}
Prior year adjustment — - {3,023} {3,023}
Credited 10 equity — — 5,559 5,559
Share option benefits recognized in income siatement — — 1,361 1,361
Foreign exchange movement — — 906 906
At 31 December 2006 — — 7,155 7,155

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused tax fosses of $38 0 milion (2005 $61 9 million) available for offset against future profits
against which no deferred tax asset has been recognised due 1o the unpredictability of future profit streams  These losses expire at
vanous dates from 2014 through 2025

Temporary differencas ansing in connection with interests in asseciates and joint ventures are immatenal

17  Other financial habilities

2006 2005

§'000 $'000
Trade payables 7,008 10,729
Cther payables 14,596 22,570
21,604 33,209

The average credit penod for trade purchases for the group 15 37 (2005 45) days The directors consider that the carrying amount of
trade and other payables approximates to therr far value

18 Bankloans

2006 2005
$°000 §'000
Bank loans 32,566 48,850
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year 16,283 16,283
In the second year 16,283 16,283
In the third to fifth years mclusive — 16,284
32,566 48,850
Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months {shown under current habilities) (16,283} {16,283}
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 16,283 32,567

The amounts shown in the table above relate wholly 1o a loan with Barclays Bank pic drawn down n December 2005 as partial
consideration for the acquisition of Venty, Inc  The loan 15 denominated n U S dollars and cames a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus
0 95%, thus exposing the group 1o potential cash flaw interest rate nsk  The directors estimate the fair value of the loan to be the same as
the amounts shown above
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19 Provisions

Restructunng Onerous lease Litigation

provision provision provision Total

$000 $'000 $'000 $000
At 1 January 2005 - — — —
Acquired dunng year 3,689 3,252 4,745 11,686
Additional provision in the period 4,980 — — 4,980
Utihzed in perod {215) — — (215)
At 1 January 2006 8,454 3,252 4,745 16,451
Exchange movements - 175 — 175
Reallccations (333) 989 {656) —
Additional provision in the penod — — 1,505 1,505
Utihzed in period (7,461) (1,630) (4,844) (13,935)
At 31 December 2006 660 2785 750 4,196
Included in current habilities 2,953
Included in non-current labilities 1,243
4,196

The sestructunng provisien relates to costs n connechion with 2 reduction in force programme within Venty, Inc - Payments have been
made during 2006 to the majonty of employees affected There remain a small number of cases outside the United States, for which final
seftlement 1s yet to be reached These matters are expected to be concluded dunng 2007 and the prowsion fully utihized n that penod

The onerous lease pravision relates to a number of properties within the Venty group  Prior to acquisiion, Yenty notfied landlords of its
Intention to vacate a number of properties and the provision represents management's best estimate of the liability  Tenants are still being
sought on two of the properties and hence the onerous lease obligations remain This 15 expected to be fully utihzed within one to two
years

The litigation provision relates to legal matters nvolving Venty, Inc  These cases are expected {o reach a conclusion 1n the near future

20 Share capital

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Authorized
600,000,000 ordinary shares of 1/3p each 3,300 3,300
Issued and fully pad
187,836,204 ordinary shares of 1/3p each 1,027 978

(2005 - 179,592,757 ordinary shares of 1/3p each)
The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry ne nght to fixed income

The movement in 1ssued share capital duning 2006 consists solely of the Issuance of 8,243,447 shares i relation to employee stock
ophion exercises

21 Own shares
Own shares
$'000
Balance at 1 January 2005 and 31 December 2005 1,775
Disposed of on exercise of oplions {758)
Balance at 31 December 2006 107

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares the company purchased in the market and are held by the Autonomy Corporation
plc Employee Benefit Trust o satisfy options under the group’s UK share options scheme {see note 24}
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22 Notes to the cash flow statement

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Profit from operations 55,540 8,811
Adjustments for
Loss on disposal of mvestment — 297
Farr value adjustment of investments 300 487
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,226 1191
Amortisation of intangible assets 8612 244
Share based compensation 3,861 1423
Foreign currency movements 449 (247)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 72988 14,423
{Increase) decrease m inventories {408) 193
Increase in recevables (20,152) (7.464)
{Decrease) Increase In payables {5,480) 10,569
Cash generated by operations 46,948 17,721
Income taxes pad {7.473) (781)
Net cash from operaiing activities 39,475 16,940

Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet} compnse cash at bank and
other shori-term hughly hquid investments with a matunty of three months or less

Cash flows from acquisitions are presented within investing acbvities as required under IAS 7 para 39, which states “[t|he aggregate cash
flows ansing from acquisitions and from disposals of subsidianes or other business units shall be presented separately and classified as
investing actvibies *

Interest recevable and payable are presented within investment income, as opposed to operating cash flows, in accordance with market
practice and as required under IAS 7 para 33, which states *[IjMerest paid and interest and dividends received may be classified as
financing cash flows and wvesting cash flows respectively, because they are costs of obtaning financial resources or returns on
nvestment *

Post-acquisition restructunng expenses are presented as non-operating activities as required under 1AS 1 BC13, which states “{ijt would

be inappropnate 10 exclude items clearly related to operations (such as inventory write downs and restructuring and relocation expenses)
because they occur uregularly or infrequently or are unusual in amount ™

23 Operating lease arrangements

2008 2005
$'000 $°000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in the income statement for the year 8,302 3,733

At 31 December 2006 the group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases faling due as follows

2006 2005

$000 $°000
Within one year 7918 7110
in the second to fifth years, inclusive 19,002 21,890
After five years 8041 11,896
34,961 40,956

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of s office propertes Leases are negotiated for an average
term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years
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24  Share based payments
a)  Share based compensation

Share based compensation charges have been charged in the profit and loss account within the following functional areas

2006 2005

$000 §'000
Research and development 1,266 425
Sales and marketing 1914 782
General and administrative 681 218
3,861 1,423

b)  Equity-seftfed share ophon plans

The group has two unapproved option plans providing employees and executives with the opportunity to acquire a propnetary interest in
the company as an incentive 1o attract and retan the services of employees The two plans are the UK Discretionary Option Scheme
1996 {the “UK Scheme") and the 1998 US Share Option Plan (the “US Plan”} Under the terms of these plans, options are granied wath
exercise prices not less than the fair market value of the company’s shares, become exercisable over vesting penods as esiablished by
the Board of Directors {generally three lo four years), and generally expire seven years from the date of grant Vested options are
exercisable following termination of employment for penods ranging from zero to 90 days

The following {ables summarnze options outstanding as at 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Weghted Weighted
average exercise average exercise

Number price {£€) Number price {(£)
Qutstanding at begirming of penod 20,725,845 388 6,411,582 429
Granted dunng the penod 3,021,000 491 786,250 253
Acquired upon acguisition of Venty - - 15,344,498 4M
Exercised dunng the penod (8,243,145) 340 (1,103,382} 299
Expired dunng the period (3,146,604) 362 {713,102) 342
Qutstanding at the end of the perod 12,357,097 392 20,725,848 388
Exercisable at the end of the period 7,307,762 423 10,087,131 467

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the penod was £473  The optons
outstanding at 31 December 2006 had a weighted average exercise price of £3 92 and a weighted average remaining contractual lfe of
4 Byears

At the date of each grant, the farr market value of the options granted duning the year were as follows

Fair vatue of

Shares option
Date Number £
27 February 2006 424,500 13
15 May 2006 938,000 133
15 June 2006 15,000 110
30 June 2006 100,000 133
15 July 2006 10,000 124
15 August 2006 3,000 125
31 August 2006 47,500 12
11 September 2006 867,000 121
15 September 2006 27,000 127
29 September 2008 10,000 145
21 October 2006 10,000 150
12 December 2006 569,000 154
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24  Share based payments (continued)
b)  Equiy-settled share oplion plans

The assumptions for the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2006 2005
£ £
Weighted average share price 424 253
Weighted average exercise pnee 424 253
Expected volatility 40% 45%
Expected life 3years 4 years

Risk-free rate 35% 40%
Expected dividends — —

Expected volallity was determmed by calculating the histoncal volatilty of the group’s share pnce over the previous three years The
expected life used in the model has been adjusled, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restnctions and behavioural considerations

Share option exercise prces were automatically adjusted fo reflect the changes in the company’s share capital structure ansing in
connection with the company's December 2005 nghts 1ssue  The effect of the adjustment was to ensure that employees were not uniairly
discrminated against as company stakeholders following the difutton of the company’s share price as a result of the aghts issue  No fair
value adjustments arose as a result of this transaction

25 Refated party transactions

Transachons between the company and its subsidianes which are related parties have been elminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transactions between the group and its jomnt venture assoctate are disclosed below There were no transactions
between the group and its assocrate other than the iniial mvestment in the share capital of the associate  Transactions between the
company and Its subsidianes and associates are disclosed in the company's separate financial statements

al  Trading transacthons with jomt venture

Dunng 2005 the group entered into commercial transactons with biinkx China Holdings Corp which resulted in a net contribution of
approximately $350,000 1o group profit after tax  The transactions were completed on an amm'’s length basis  There have been no
transactions duning 2006 and there are no balances due (o or from the joint venture at 31 December 2006 (2005 $nil)

b)  Remuneration of key management parsonnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, 1s set cut below in aggregate for each of the
categones spectfied n 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further information about the remuneration of indwidual directors 15 provided in
the audited portion of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 16 and 17

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Share-based payment 43 43

26 Subsidiares

A list of the significant Investments in subsidianes, including the name, couniry of Incorporation and proportion of ownership mterest 15 set
forth on page 48
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2006 2005
Note £'900 £'000
Non-cument assets
Intangible assets 2 — 474
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 3 224,981 73,279
Investments in joint venture 4 2417 2,091
Investments in associate 5 1,235 —
Equity and other investments ] - 200
228,333 76,044
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 8 23,342 176,516
Cash and cash equivalents 37,880 19,967
61,222 196,473
Total assets 289,555 272517
Current habilties
Trade and other payables 9 {466) {4.201)
Tax liabilities — (215)
(466) {4,416)
Net current assets 60,756 192,067
Total assets less curreni habilibes 288,089 268,101
Deferred tax liability 7 {(111) {431)
Net assels 288,978 267,670
Equity
Share capital 627 599
Share premium account 274,328 244,884
Capital redemption reserve 70 70
Own shares (646) {1,126)
Retained eamings 14,599 23,243
Total equity 288,978 267,670

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 13 March 2007  They were signed on its
behalf by

A4

Dr Michael R Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
13 March 2007
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At 1 January 2005
Retained profit
Shares repurchased
Shares 1ssued

Rights 1ssue

At 31 December 2005
Retained profit

EBT movemant
Shares issued

At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2005
Retained profit
Deferred tax

Shares repurchased
Shares 1ssued

At 31 December 2005
Retained loss

EBT movement

Shares 1ssued
At 31 December 2006

Autonomy Corparation ple

Company Only Financial Staterments - Campan

Statement of Changes in E

for the year ended 31 December 2006

Caprtal
redemption
Share capital Share capital Share premium reserve Sub-total

{number) £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
108,110,108 359 73121 68 73,548
(593,942) 2 — 2 —
12,281,426 42 24513 — 24,555
59,795,165 200 147,250 — 147 450
179,592,757 599 244 884 70 245,553
—_ - 980 — 980
8,243,447 28 28,464 _ 28,492
187,836,204 627 274,328 70 275,025

Sub-total Retarned

forwarded ESOP reserve earnings Total

£'000 £000 £000 £'000
73,548 (1,126) 17421 89,843
- — 7,031 7031
— — (1,209 {1,209)
24,555 - —_ 24,555
147,450 - - 147,450
245,563 (1,126) 23,243 267,670
— — (8,644} (8,644)
%80 480 — 1,460
28,492 — — 28,492
275,025 (646) 14,599 288,978
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Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Invesiment in associates and joint venture
Purchases of intangible assets

Investment in subsidianes

Net cash used In investing activities
Financing activities
Purchase of own shares
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Net cash from financing actvities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note to the Cash Flow Statement

{Loss) profit from operations
Adjustments for
Amortisation of iIntangible assets
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase n infercompany balances
(increase) decrease In receivables
(Decrease) increase in payables
Cash reduced by operations
Tax pad
Net cash from operating acbvities

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

45

2006 2005
000 000
(8.948) (168)
1,296 1,496
{1,234) (2,092)
- (555)
(1811) {165,326)
(1,749} (166,477)
- (1,209)
28,620 150,471
28,620 149,262
17,923 {17.383)
19,957 37,340
37,880 19,957
2006 2005
£000 £000
(9,875) 5,534
99 233
(9,776) 5,767
4,800 (6,792)
(300) 225
{3,360) 532
{8,636) (168)
(312) —
(8,548) (168)
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1 Significant accounting policies

As permitied by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the income statement of the company only 15 not presented as part of this annual
report  As permitted by the Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared i accordance with Interational Financial
Reporting Standards  The company has no employees other than the three non-executive directors (2005 3) Therr remuneration 1s
shown i the group's remuneration report

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis The principal accounting policies adopled are
the same as those set out In note 2 o the consolidated financial statements except as noted below

Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment
These company financial statements are presented in sterling as that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the

company operates

2 Intangible assets

Software
licenses Patents Tota!
£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
Al 1 January 2006 3147 659 3,806
Disposals - {555} (555)
At 31 December 2006 347 104 3,251
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 310 222 3332
Charge for the year 7 62 99
Disposals — {180) (180)
At 31 December 2006 3147 104 3,251
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 — — -
At 31 December 2005 37 437 474

3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

The company has nvestments In the subsidianes listed on page 48 which principally affected the profits or net assets of the group

£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2005 73,279
Transferred from amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 148,395
Additions 3,307
At 31 December 2006 224,981

4 [Investment in joint venture

The company has an investment in the joint venture listed on page 48 which affected the profits and net assels of the group and was
acquired duning 2005

5 Investment in associate

During the year the company mvested £1,235,000 for a 40% as part of its Chinese joint venture operations
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6  Equity and other investments

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Fair value — 200

The nvestment included above represents an investment in a privately owned company  This investment was transferred to a subsidiary
undertaking dunng the year

7 Deferred tax habiity

2006
£°000
At 1 January 2006 431
Released in current tax (320)
At 31 December 2006 111
The company did not have any {ax losses in either year  The deferred tax liabiliy relates to accelerated capilal allowances
8  Trade and other receivables
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 22,947 176,431
Qther recewvables 395 85
23,342 176,516
The directors consider that the carrying amount of frade and other recevables approximates they far value
9  Trade and other payables
2006 2005
£000 £'000
Trade payables 456 1,803
Other payables — 2,398
466 4,201

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their farr value

10 Related party transactions
During the year the company incurred license fee related expenditures of £8 6 million {2005 income of £5 8 million)

All transactions are conducied on an am's length basis and the amount owed by subsidiary undertakings 1s disclosed in note 8
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Principal Group Companies

Company Country of operation Function
Autonomy Corporation ple England Holding company

Autonomy Systems Ltd England Software development and distnbution
Autonomy Belgum BVBA Belgium Marketing and sales support
Autonomy France Sarl France Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Netherlands BY Netherdands Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Systems Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Germany GmBH Germany Marketing and sales support
Autonomy ftaly Sri ltaly Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Spain SL Span Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Nordic AS Norway Sub licensing

Autonomy Sweden AB Sweden tarketing and sales support
Autonomy Services GmbH Germany Professional services

Autonomy, inc USA Software development and distribution
Autonomy Systems {Beying) Limited Company China Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Systems Austraha Pty Ltd Australia Sales agent

Autonomy Systems Canada Ltd Canada R&D services and maintenance services
Autonomy Japan KK Japan Sales agent

Virage, In¢ USA Software development and distribution
Etalk Corporztion USA Soltware development and distnbution
Vertty, Inc USA Software development and distnbution
Verty Benelux BV Netherlands Sublicensing

Venty Deutschland GmbH Germany Sales agent

Venty France SARL France Sales agent

Venty ltaly Sd Italy Sales agent

Venly Mexico 8 DeRL DeCV Mexico Sales agem

Venly Luxembourg SARL Luxembourg Sales agent

Venty Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong Sales agent

All of the above entities are 100% owned

Joint Ventures and Associates

Company Country of operation Function Holding
OpenV China Holdings Company Cayman Islands Holding company 0%
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Shareholder Information and Advisors

Autonomy Shareholder Services

All administrative inquines regarding shareholdings such as questions about lost share certificates should be directed 10 the company’s

registrars as follows

Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 82, The Pavilions

Bndgwater Road
Bnstol

BS93 7NH

UK

Tel +44 870 702 0000

email web quenes@computershare co uk

Stock Exchanges

Autonomy's ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange under the symbol "AU®  Autonomy does not maintain hshngs on

any other stock exchanges

Shareholder Communications

Topics featured in this Annual Repori can be found via the Autonomy home page on the Internet {hitp /iwww autonomy com} Financral
results, news on Autonomy products, services and ather activities can also be found via thal address  Autonomy’s Investor Relalions
Department can be reached on +44 1223 448 000 or at investor_realtions@autonomy com

Advisors

Auditors Stockbrokers Investor Relations
Deloitte & Touche LLP UBS Warburg Financial Dynamics Lid
City House 112 Finsbury Avenue Holborn Gate

126-130 Hills Road London 26 Southampton Buildings
Cambndge EC2N 2PP London

CB2 1RY WC2A 1PB

Registrars Registered Office

Computershare Cambnidge Business Park

PO Box 82, The Pavilions Cowley Road

Bndgwater Road Cambndge

Bristol CB4 0WZ

BS99 TNH

Registered in England 3175909
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